
1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, JULY 06, 2015 
7:30 P.M. 

 
Meeting to be held at City Hall 

301 West Main Street 
 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 15, 2015: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

Project Status Report 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Boards and Commissions Appointments.  Approve the following mayoral boards and commissions 

appointments: 
 

Name Board/Commission Term Expires 
Kristen Woodbury* Parks & Recreation Commission 06-30-2017 
Dan Jozwiak* Zoning Board of Appeals 06-30-2018 
Matthew Grubb* Zoning Board of Appeals ï Alternate 06-30-2018 
Linda Morovitz* SATA Board of Directors 10-01-2018 

 * Indicates reappointment 

AKKirkland
Sticky Note
This item will be presented at the meeting.



2 
 

2. Ada Street Block Party Permission.  Approve application of Athena Kurtz, on behalf of the Ada Street 
Block Party Planning Committee, to close Ada Street between King Street and Lee Street on Friday, 
July 31, 2015 from 4:00 p.m. until 10:00 p.m. for a block party for neighborhood residents, waive the 
insurance requirement, and authorize Traffic Control Order No. 1332 formalizing the action. 
 

3. Professional Services AgreementðOliver Street Resurfacing Project Surveying Services.  Approve 
professional services agreement with Landmark Surveying, P.C. for surveying services related to the 
Oliver Street Resurfacing Project in the amount of $10,300.00 and authorize payment up to that 
amount as terms of the contract are fulfilled. 

 
4. Bid Award ï Legal Notices Printing Services.  Authorize low bid of The Argus Press Company for 

legal notice and minutes synopsis printing services in the amount of $2.50 per column inch for fiscal 
years 2015-16 and 2016-17.   

 
5. Bid Award ï 2015 Sidewalk Replacement Program.  Approve the low bid of Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack 

Asphalt for the 2015 Sidewalk Replacement Program in the amount of $61,125.00 and authorize 
payment up to the contract amount upon satisfactory completion of the work or a portion thereof.   

 
6. Warrant No. 505.  Authorize Warrant No. 505 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 
Shiawassee Area 
Transportation Agency 

Annual Local Funding Commitment- 
FY 15/16 Genera $72,202.09 

Michigan Municipal League 
Workersô Compensation Fund Workerôs Compensation Insurance Various $19,823.00 

Owosso Charter Township 
Owosso charter township 2011 
water agreement payment- 
April ïJune 2015 

Water $ 9,151.91 

Caledonia Charter Township Caledonia utility fund payment-  
April ï June 2015 Water $18,308.09 

  

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
1. Council Candidate Interviews & Appointment to Fill Council Vacancy.  Allow declared Council 

candidates to deliver a 5-minute statement, conduct a question and answer period between Council 
and the candidates, and appoint new Council Member to fill the vacancy left by the resignation of 
David Bandkau. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. S. Grey, SATA Board of Directors.  Letter of resignation. 
2. Charles P. Rau, Building Official.  May 2015 Building Department Report. 
3. Charles P. Rau, Building Official.  May 2015 Code Violations Report. 
4. Downtown Historic District Commission.  Minutes of May 20, 2015. 
5. Downtown Historic District Commission.  Minutes of June 17, 2015. 
6. Downtown Development Authority/Main Street.  Minutes of June 3, 2015. 
7. Parks & Recreation Commission.  Minutes of June 22, 2015. 
8. Planning Commission.  Minutes of June 22, 2015. 
9. Historical Commission.  Minutes of June 22, 2015. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 



3 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, July 20, 2015 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Historical Commission, expires December 31, 2017 
Planning Commission, expires June 30, 2016 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the hearing impaired and 
audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon 
seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact 
the City of Owosso by writing or calling the following:  Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867 or at 
(989) 725-0500. The City of Owosso Website address is www.ci.owosso.mi.us 



Draft 1 06-15-2015 

OWOSSO CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 15, 2015 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR BENJAMIN R. FREDERICK 
 
OPENING PRAYER:  PASTORAL ASSOCIATE ED HORSKI 
    ST PAUL CATHOLIC CHURCH 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: MAYOR BENJAMIN FREDERICK 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Benjamin R. Frederick, Mayor Pro-Tem Christopher T. Eveleth, 

Councilpersons Burton D. Fox, Elaine M. Greenway and 
Robert J. Teich, Jr. 

 
ABSENT: Councilpersons Loreen F. Bailey and David B. Bandkau. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the agenda with the following changes: 
 

Move the following Consent Items to Items of Business per the request of Councilperson Fox. 
 
1. 2015-16 Water & Sewer Rates     (Becomes Item of Business No. 5). 

 
2. Lease Agreement ï Vactor Truck  (Becomes Item of Business No. 6) 
 
Add the following Item of Business to the agenda: 
 
7.   Bandkau Resignation.   Consider acceptance of Councilperson Bandkauôs letter of resignation and 

discuss the process to appoint a new member to fill the vacancy. 
 

Motion supported by Councilperson Fox and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 1, 2015 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 1, 2015 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Fox and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Rezoning Request – 200 block of South Shiawassee Street   
 
A public hearing was held to receive citizen comment regarding request to rezone the 7 parcels bound by 
Clinton, Shiawassee, Genesee, and Elm Streets, from I-1 Light Industrial District to B-1 Local Business 
District.   
 



Draft 2 06-15-2015 

There were no citizen comments.  
 
Whereas, the Council, after due and legal notice, has met and there being no one to be heard, motion by 
Councilperson Eveleth that the following ordinance amendment be adopted:  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 767 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 38 ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES  
TO REZONE PARCELS OF REAL PROPERTY ALONG SOUTH SHIAWASSEE STREET 

AND AMEND THE ZONING MAP 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso received a petition from Midwest V, LLC on behalf of the owner of real 
property identified as Lots 1-4 AL & BO WILLIAMS ADDITION, to rezone the parcels from I-1 Light 
Industrial District to B-1 Local Business District; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission published and mailed notices for the request, held a public hearing 
on the request, and deliberated on the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recognizes the value in rezoning the seven (7) parcels along 
South Shiawassee Street for economic development and growth; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed rezoning meets the intent and criteria for a 
zoning amendment as it relates to the master plan and the zoning ordinance; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City staff and Planning Commission recommend, without reservations or conditions, the 
rezoning of the following parcels: 

 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing June 15, 2015 and deliberated on the request; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the zoning petition meets the intent and criteria for a zoning map 
amendment, specifically as it relates to the requirements of Section 38-555.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS:  
      
SECTION 1.     OFFICIAL ZONING MAP AMENDMENT.  That Chapter 38, Zoning, Sec. 38-27, Zoning 
Districts and Map, reflect the following change, to be noted on the official map and filed with the city clerk:  

Parcel Address Current Zoning Amended Zoning 
202 S. Shiawassee I-1 B-1 
206 S. Shiawassee I-1 B-1 
210 S. Shiawassee I-1 B-1 
214 S. Shiawassee I-1 B-1 
511 Clinton I-1 B-1 
502 Genesee I-1 B-1 
508 Genesee I-1 B-1 

Parcel Address Parcel Number Current Zoning Amended Zoning 
202 S. Shiawassee 050-660-021-001-00 I-1 B-1 
206 S. Shiawassee 050-660-021-003-00 I-1 B-1 
210 S. Shiawassee 050-660-021-004-00 I-1 B-1 
214 S. Shiawassee 050-660-021-005-00 I-1 B-1 



Draft 3 06-15-2015 

 
SECTION 2.  AVAILABILITY.  This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerkôs office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.  
 
SECTION 3.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This amendment shall become effective July 7, 2015. 

 
Motion supported by councilperson Greenway 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilperson Teich, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilperson Greenway, and Mayor 

Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilpersons Bailey and Bandkau. 
 
Ordinance Amendment – I-2 General Industrial Zoning District 
 
A public hearing was conducted to receive citizen comment regarding the proposed amendment to 
Section 38-312, Principal uses permitted, of Article XIV, I-2 General Industrial Districts, Chapter 38, 
Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Owosso to better reflect the current land use and impose 
limitations on certain uses by requiring a special use permit.  
 
There were no citizen comments.  

 
Whereas, the Council, after due and legal notice, has met and there being no one to be heard, motion by 
Councilperson Fox that the following ordinance be adopted:  

 
ORDINANCE NO.  768 

 
AMENDING SECTION 38-312, PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED, 

OF THE OWOSSO CITY ZONING CODE REGARDING 
I-2 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL ZONING 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso Zoning Code Section 38-312, Principle uses permitted, outlines specific 
uses allowed in the I-2, General Industrial District, zoning designation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the uses permitted within the I-2 zoning district need modification to meet current use needs 
while imposing stricter limitations on certain types of land use by requiring a special use permit; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission worked diligently to revise said language and recommends 
approval of the amendment as proposed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on June 15, 2015 to receive comment from any and all 
interested parties and deliberated on the proposed amendment. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF OWOSSO ORDAINS:  
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. That existing Section 38-312, Principal uses permitted, of the Owosso City 
Code be amended to read: 
 

511 Clinton 050-660-021-002-00 I-1 B-1 
502 Genesee 050-660-021-006-00 I-1 B-1 
508 Genesee 050-660-021-007-00 I-1 B-1 



Draft 4 06-15-2015 

Sec. 38-312. - Principal uses permitted.  
 

In an I-2 district, no building or land shall be used and no building shall be erected except for one (1) 
or more of the following specified uses unless otherwise provided in this chapter:  

(1) Any principal use first permitted in an I-1 district; 

 (2) Onsite heating and electric power generating plants using conventional fuels or renewable 
resources; 

(3) Gasoline or petroleum storage; 

(4) Railroad yards; 

(5) Any of the following production or manufacturing uses (not including storage of finished 
products) provided that they are located not less than eight hundred (800) feet distant from any 
residential district and not less than three hundred (300) feet distant from any other district:  

a.   Junkyards, provided such are entirely enclosed within a building or within an eight (8) foot 
obscuring wall and provided further that one property line abuts a railroad right-of-way.  

(6) Foundry operations within a closed building. 

(7) Any other use which shall be determined by the council after recommendation from the planning 
commission, to be of the same general character as the above permitted uses in this section. 
The council may impose any required setbacks and/or performance standards so as to insure 
public health, safety and general welfare;  

(8) Accessory buildings and uses customarily incident to any of the above permitted uses. 
 
Additional uses allowed by special use permit: 

(1) Grain elevators; 

(2)  Any of the following production or manufacturing uses (not including storage of finished 
products) provided that they are located not less than eight hundred (800) feet distant from any 
residential district and not less than three hundred (300) feet distant from any other district: 

a.  Incineration of garbage or refuse when conducted within an approved and enclosed 
incinerator plant; 

b.  Blast furnace, steel furnace, blooming or rolling mill; 
c.  Manufacture of corrosive acid or alkali, cement, lime, gypsum or plaster of Paris; 
d. Petroleum or other inflammable liquids, production or refining; 
e.  Smelting of copper, iron or zinc ore; 

 
SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY. The various sections and provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed to 
be severable, and should any section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid the same shall not affect the validity of this 
Ordinance as a whole or any section or provision of this Ordinance other than the section or provision so 
declared to be unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
SECTION 3.   INCONSISTENT ORDINANCES. All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with 
the provisions of this Ordinance are repealed. 
 
SECTION 4.  AVAILABILITY.  This ordinance may be purchased or inspected in the city clerkôs office, 
Monday through Friday between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
 
SECTION 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This amendment shall become effective July 7, 2015. 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 



Draft 5 06-15-2015 

AYES: Councilperson Teich, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilperson Greenway, and Mayor 
Frederick. 

 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilpersons Bailey and Bandkau. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Ed Urban, 601 Glenwood Street, said he was going mow the lawn at Monroe & Lincoln Streets but the 
city had come through and mowed their strip.  It made it look much nicer.  He also asked for clarification 
of the difference between a local street and a minor collector. 
 
Ann Trierweiler, 402 West Main Street, Elsie, said she was visiting her sister on Sunday, May 3rd.  
Somebody was burning and it was a large fire you could see it over the 6 foot fence. She called 911 and 
reported the fire but after checking there wasnôt any burning violation reported.  She could not understand 
why that wouldnôt have been a burning violation.   
 
Shelva Cebulski, 1243 West Marion Street is against burning she wants it to stop except for campfires. 
She said burning in her neighborhood has decreased slightly. She believes that complaining about your 
neighbor burning, pits neighbor against neighbor.  
 
Lisa Stechschulte, 724 River Street commented about the burning in the city. She also shared several 
stories of people that had died of cancer. She stated she feels she is a hostage in her own home because 
she goes outside if someone is burning she has to turn around and come back in because she canôt 
breathe. She stated people shouldnôt be allowed to burn 7 days a week. She also shared her concern 
about people not being able to afford the increase in the water rates. 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
City Manager Crawford handed out a financial report which ties into the budget amendment that is on the 
agenda.  He also reported the survey, that will determine income levels in certain parts of the city, has 
been mailed out. This survey will allow for various funding opportunities. Not all residents will receive 
surveys.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
Bid Award – Lime Residuals Removal/ReUse.  Waive competitive bidding requirements and authorize 
purchase order with Zmitko Farms Feed & Grain, LLC for the removal/re-use of Water Treatment Plant 
lime residuals at $10.00 per cubic yard with a total contract amount not to exceed $50,000.00. 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  51-2015 

 
WAVING BID REQUIREMENT AND AWARD CONTRACT  

TO ZMITKO FARMS FEED & GRAIN, LLC  
FOR REMOVAL OF LIME RESIDUAL MATERIAL AT THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT 

 
WHEREAS, the city has determined it necessary remove lime residual material at its water treatment 
plant lagoons to gain lagoon capacity; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city reached an agreement with Zmitko Farms Feed & Grain, LLC to remove 
approximately 5,000 cubic yards at a cost of $10.00 per yard; and 



Draft 6 06-15-2015 

WHEREAS, the proposed cost is within the current water fund budget. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to waive competitive bid procedures and have Zmitko Farms Feed & 
Grain, LLC remove approximately 5,000 cubic yards of lime residuals at a cost of $10.00 
per yard. 

 
SECOND: The contract shall be in the form of a city purchase order with Zmitko Farms Feed & 

Grain, LLC as billed and certified correct by the city utilities director for the period of 
January 1, 2015 through July 31, 2015 up to but not exceeding $50,000. 

 
THIRD: The above expense shall be paid from the Water Fund. 

 
Bid Award – Ferric Chloride.  Accept low bid from PVS Technologies, Inc. for Ferric Chloride in the 
amount of $.565 per pound of iron, with an estimated annual contract of $40,680.00, and authorize 
payment based on the bid unit prices for actual quantities required for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2016. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 52-2015 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
OF A PURCHASE ORDER FOR 

FERRIC CHLORIDE FOR WATER TREATMENT FOR FY 2015/16 
WITH PVS TECHNOLOGIES INC. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires ferric chloride (iron) in bulk 
deliveries for use in treating municipal wastewater; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought bids for ferric chloride; a bid was received from PVS Technologies 
Inc.; and it is hereby determined that PVS Technologies Inc. is qualified to provide such product and that 
it has submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST:  The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to purchase ferric chloride from PVS Technologies Inc. in the amount of 
$0.565 per pound of iron for the city fiscal year 2015/2016 with an estimated total amount 
for the year of $40,680. 

 
SECOND:  The purchase agreement between the City and PVS Technologies Inc. shall be in the 

form of a City Purchase Order and bid documents. 
 
THIRD:  The above expenses shall be paid from the Wastewater Fund following  delivery. 
   

Bid Award – Sodium Hypochlorite.  Accept low bid from Jones Chemical, Inc. for bulk Sodium 
Hypochlorite in the amount of $.67 per gallon plus $85 per truck load for split delivery with an estimated 
annual contract of $7,200.00 and authorize payment based on the bid unit prices for actual quantities 
required for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
  



Draft 7 06-15-2015 

RESOLUTION NO.  53-2015 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
OF A PURCHASE ORDER FOR 

BULK CHLORINE SOLUTION FOR WATER TREATMENT 
FOR FY 2015/16 

WITH JONES CHEMICAL INC. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires sodium hypochlorite (chlorine 
solution) in bulk deliveries for use in treating municipal drinking water and wastewater; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought bids for bulk chlorine solution (sodium hypochlorite); a bid was 
received from Jones Chemical Inc.; and it is hereby determined that Jones Chemical Inc. is qualified to 
provide such product and that it has submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST:  The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to purchase bulk chlorine solution from Jones Chemical Inc. in the amount 
of $0.69 per gallon of solution plus $85 per truckload for split delivery for the city fiscal 
year 2015/2016 with an estimated total amount for the year of $37,200. 

 
SECOND:  The purchase agreement between the City and Jones Chemical Inc. shall be in the form 

of a City Purchase Order and bid documents. 
 
THIRD:  The above expenses shall be paid from the Water and Wastewater Funds following 

delivery. 
   

Bid Rejection - Quicklime.  Reject the single bid received for Quicklime due to the fact that regular 
bidders did not receive notice of the bid and repeat the bidding process.   
 

RESOLUTION NO. 54-2015 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REJECTION OF BIDS AND 
REBIDDING FOR QUICKLIME FOR WATER TREATMENT 

FOR FY 2015/16 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, requires quicklime in bulk deliveries for 
use in treating municipal drinking water; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso sought bids for quicklime for the upcoming fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2015; but only a single bid was received and there was a deficiency in the bid request process; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The current bid(s) be rejected. 
 
SECOND:  Staff is directed to re-bid for this item assuring that all potential bidders are notified of the 

bid request. 
 
THIRD:  The current contract with Graymont Western Lime, Inc. be extended for one month until 

new bids are received and a new contract awarded. 
 

  



Draft 8 06-15-2015 

Warrant No. 504.  Authorize Warrant No. 504 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 

Logicalis, Inc. Network engineering support- 
May 2015 

Various $10,976.00 

William C. Brown, P.C. Professional services- 
May 11, 2015 ï June 8, 2015 General $10,762.96 

 
*Check Register - May 2015. Affirm check disbursements totaling $ 634,759.45 for the month of May 2015. 
 
Motion supported by councilperson Teich. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilperson Greenway, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilperson Fox, Teich, and Mayor 

Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilpersons Bailey and Bandkau. 

  

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Property Sale – 1509 W. Oliver Street  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the sale of the property known as 1509 West Oliver Street 
to Cargill, Incorporated in the amount of $70,736.60 as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 55-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY 
AT 1509 WEST OLIVER STREET 

 
WHEREAS, the city owns a vacant industrial-zoned 19.118 acre parcel commonly known as 1509 West 
Oliver Street and described as follows: 
 

PART OF S W 1/4 & PART OF SE FR 1/4 SEC 14 T7N R2E BEG AT CEN POST, TH S 1*32 1/ 
2' W 33', TH E 418.73', TH S 42*07' E 1066.59', TH N 48*30' E 34.45', TH S 43*23' E 177.7' TH S 
46*45' E 180', TH S47*52'47"W 52.92', TH S47*07'00"E 146.16', TH ON A CURVE TO THE 
LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 245', A DELTA ANGLE OF 38*22'13" AND A CHORD BEARING 
AND DISTANCE OF S61*18'07"E 161.02', TH ON A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 245', A DELTA ANGLE OF 09*29'47" AND A CHORD BEARING DISTANCE OF S85*14'07"E 
40.56', TH S89*59'00"E 154.05', TH ON A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 
305.00, A DELTA ANGLE OF 36*33'20" AND A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF 
S71*42'20"E 191.31' TO THE EAST AND WEST 1/8 LINE IN THE SE 1/4 OF SAID SEC 14, TH 
N 89*59' W ALG 1/8 LN 1026.59' TO NE LN OF AARR R/W, TH N40*33 1/2 W ALONG SAID 
R/W LN TO N-S 1/4 LN, TH N TO BEG. (EX EASMT FOR POWER LNS CON POWER CO. 

 
and 

 
SEC 14, T7N, R2E ALL THAT PART OF THE SW ı OF SEC 14 LYING NEôLY OF AARR R/WY; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the city is not currently utilizing the land and desires to sell the land for industrial purposes 
and an offer has been received and a contract prepared for sale of the property; and 



Draft 9 06-15-2015 

WHEREAS, the value of the land in question has been determined according to the cityôs Property Sale 
Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, Cargill, Incorporated approached the City offering to purchase the property, as evidenced by 
the attached partially executed purchase agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 18, 2015 the City Council approved a 21-day posting period to the receive citizen 
comment and competitive offers for the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, no offers were received within the given time. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The property be sold to Cargill, Incorporated for the price of $3,700 per acre, for a total of 
$70,736.60, in accordance with the terms included in the purchase agreement. 

 
SECOND: The Mayor and City Clerk are instructed and authorized to execute appropriate 

documents to execute the sale. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Teich. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilpersons Teich, Fox, Greenway, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilpersons Bailey and Bandkau. 
 
Monroe Street – NFC System Classification Change 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to authorize the following resolution revising the NFC classification for 
Monroe Street from Woodlawn Avenue to Gould Street as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  56-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING REVISION TO THE STATEWIDE NFC SYSTEM 
FOR MONROE STREET FROM WOODLAWN AVENUE TO GOULD STREET 

 
WHEREAS, streets within the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, are classified according to 
two separate systems, one being the National Functional Classification (NFC) System; and  
 
WHEREAS, the NFC system identifies the particular function of a roadway within the greater network of 
streets and these designations determine which streets may be eligible for federal assistance; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso is proposing a change in the NFC street classification of Monroe Street, 
from Woodlawn Avenue to Gould Street, from a local street to a minor collector, bringing this section in 
line with other portions of Monroe Street; and  
 
WHEREAS, the request for change must be submitted to the Michigan Department of Transportation, 
with final approval shall be made by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA).  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 



Draft 10 06-15-2015 

FIRST:  The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to proceed with the proposed change in street classification.  

 
SECOND:  That the City of Owosso submit appropriate documents seeking FHWA approval to 

change the street classification of Monroe Street, between Woodlawn Avenue and Gould 
Street, from Local to Minor Collector within the statewide NFC system of roads in 
Michigan.  

 
THIRD:  That the Mayor and Public Act 51 Street Administrator are authorized to sign the 

application documents and submit the application and corresponding documents to. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Fox. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilpersons Teich, Fox, Greenway, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilpersons Bailey and Bandkau. 

 
Cat Care Organization 
 
Motion by Councilperson Eveleth to authorize a resolution naming Community Cats as a ñcat care 
organizationò noted in the Cityôs Trap-Neuter-Release Program Ordinance. 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  57-2015 

 
RESOLUTION NAMING THE CAT CARE ORGANIZATION FOR THE 

FERAL/STRAY CAT TRAP-NEUTER-RETURN PROGRAM 
 
WHEREAS the City of Owosso has adopted an ordinance for a feral/stray cat trap-neuter-return program; 
and  
 
WHEREAS it is beneficial to the City of Owosso to recognize a cat care organization as defined by 
Owosso City Code Section 5-40 et seq.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Community Cats of Owosso organization is 
recognized by the City of Owosso as a cat care organization with the responsibility stated in Owosso City 
Code Section 5-40 et seq.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Lori Bailey shall be the contact person for said organization. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Greenway. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilpersons Greenway, Teich, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilperson Fox and 

Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilpersons Bailey and Bandkau. 
 
  



Draft 11 06-15-2015 

2014-15 Adopt City Budget Amendment 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to adopt the following resolution amending the 2014-2015 budget 
incorporating adjustments made during the fiscal year. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 58-2015 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2014-15 ADOPTED BUDGET 
 
WHEREAS,  pursuant to Chapter  8, Section 5 of the Owosso City Charter and the Uniform Budgeting 
and Accounting Act, the City Council adopted on May 19, 2014 a budget for the fiscal year beginning  
on July 1, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the operating  budget for fiscal year 2014-15 was adopted at the fund level, authorizing 
administrators managerial  control of line item and activity level; and 

 
WHEREAS,  amendments  made throughout the year by management  and actions taken by City  
Council are hereby ratified, presented comprehensively, and incorporated with the original  2014-15 
adopted budget for comparison  and further presentment in the Cityôs general purpose financial 
statements for which budget data is required. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council has received the 2014-15 final 
amended budget documents attached hereto and made part hereof reflecting a balanced budget and 
authorizes the City Clerk to include in the official minutes. 

        

FUND 
2013-14   
ACTUAL 

2014-15 
ORIGINAL 

2014-15 
AMENDED 

2015-16 
ADOPTED 

GENERAL FUND 6,706,319 6,873,325 7,111,200 6,833,200
MAJOR STREET FUND 1,144,748 1,611,450 1,069,650 860,550
LOCAL STREET FUND 787,786 597,450 781,775 542,575
CDBG REVOLVING LOAN FUND 68,645 20,000 25,475 35,250
HOUSING & REDEVELOPMENT 74,483 398,700 44,150 230,650
OBRA FUND‐DISTRICT#3:CONAGRA 1,897 10,900 14,875 12,350
OBRA FUND‐DISTRICT#8:SUGARBEET 0 0 6,975 6,500
OBRA FUND-DISTRICT#9:ROBBIN'S LOFT 2,290 2,500 2,800 2,225
OBRA FUND‐DISTRICT#11:CAPITOL 
BOWL 8,695 7,975 13,275 9,525
OBRA FUND‐DISTRICT#12:WOODARD 
LOFT 31,497 28,950 39,950 37,725
OBRA FUND-DISTRICT#13:WESENER 
BLDG 0 550 550 775
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 0 177,000 194,400 177,225
HISTORICAL FUND 70,901 106,075 109,225 68,200
DEBT SERVICE‐2010 GO BONDS 57,568 57,150 57,150 56,650
2013 UTGO 250 70,800 70,400 62,850
2009 LTGO DEBT 75,295 74,150 74,150 77,800
CAPITAL PROJECTS‐2011 STREET 
PROGRAM 316,536 235,675 106,300 37,600
CAPITAL PROJECTS‐BUILDING AUTH 30,528 0 150 0
DDA CONSTRUCTION FUND 115,757 1,068,250 13,900 0
TRANSPORTATION FUND 75,332 65,450 65,450 76,100



Draft 12 06-15-2015 

SEWER FUND 1,370,790 0 1,426,595 1,700,000
WATER FUND 2,059,890 0 2,423,523 3,486,000
WASTEWATER FUND 1,699,194 2,099,000 1,734,557 2,048,000
FLEET MAINTENANCE FUND 402,533 934,550 962,475 758,475

 
Motion supported by Councilperson Teich. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilpersons Teich, Greenway, Fox, and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
ABSENT: Councilpersons Bailey and Bandkau. 
 
2015-16 Water & Sewer Rates   
 
Councilperson Fox pulled this from the consent agenda saying he was concerned about the sewer rates 
in the summer because people water their lawns and this water does not go down the sewer.  He feels 
this is not fair to residents.  Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth asked why the increase was on the agenda because 
it had already been approved by council.  Council members agreed and stated maybe a discussion in the 
future regarding this is necessary. 
 
Then Councilperson Eveleth made a motion to approve the proposed water and sewer rates for the  
2015-16 fiscal year as follows:   
 

RESOLUTION NO.  59-2015 
 

WATER AND SEWER RATE SCHEDULE 
FOR THE CITY FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2015 

 
"Pursuant to Sections 34-248. Water Rates, and 34-249. Sewer Rates, of Article V, of Chapter 34, of the 
Owosso City Code, the City Council does hereby resolve that the following rate schedule for water and 
sewer service shall be in effect for the City fiscal year beginning July 1, 2015 and continuing thereafter 
until modified or replaced by further Council action. Bills issued with a nominal bill date of June 30, 2015 
covering the quarter from April to June 2014 shall be billed under the previous rate schedule. All previous 
resolutions or parts thereof, insofar as the same may be in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed 
following the effective date of this schedule.ò 
   

CITY OF OWOSSO 
WATER AND SEWER RATE SCHEDULE 

FOR THE CITY FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2015 
 

I. QUARTERLY WATER AND SEWER RATES 
 

In-town quarterly water service charges consist of: a demand charge based on water meter size (see 
table below), a capital charge dedicated for water main replacement, and a metered usage charge. One 
meter unit is equal to 100 cubic feet of water or about 750 gallons. Rates for retail out-of-town water 
service are double the in-town rate, except that the capital charge does not apply to out-of-town 
customers where the respective Township separately finances water main replacement. Twenty five 
percent of the out-of-town revenue is collected for and transferred to the respective Township for use in 
replacing and improving their water distribution system. 
 



Draft 13 06-15-2015 

Quarterly sewer charges consist of a demand charge based on the water meter size (see table below) 
and a sewer usage charge based on metered water consumption. The City has no retail out-of-town 
sewer service.  
 
Bills are issued on a quarterly basis and, if not paid by the due date as shown on the billing, a late 
payment charge of ten percent (10%) of the current amount due may be added for failure to make prompt 
payment. 
 

QUARTERLY WATER SERVICE CHARGE: 
 
In-town:  In-town Water Usage Charge of $1.80 per meter unit plus In-town Water   

   Demand Charge plus Capital Charge from Table below. 
 

Out-of-town: Out-of-town Water Usage Charge of $3.60 per meter unit plus Out-of-town Water 
Demand Charge from Table below. 

 
QUARTERLY SEWER SERVICE CHARGE: 

 
Sewer Usage Charge of $2.20 per unit plus Sewer Demand Charge  from Table below. 
  
For residential customers without metered water service, the quarterly sewer charge shall be $78.80 
per residential unit.  
 
QUARTERLY DEMAND CHARGE TABLES 

 
A. Potable Water & Sewer Service 

  
Water Meter 

Size 
Water 
Demand 

Water    
Capital 

Sewer 
Demand 

Combined     
In-town 

Water Only 
(Out-of-town) 

5/8"  $         32.00   $         12.00  $         26.00  $         70.00   $         64.00 
3/4"  $         48.00   $         18.00  $         39.00  $       105.00   $         96.00 
1"  $         80.00   $         30.00  $         65.00  $       175.00   $       160.00 
1.5ò  $       160.00   $         60.00  $       130.00  $       350.00   $       320.00 
2"  $       256.00   $         96.00  $       208.00  $       560.00   $       512.00 
3"  $       480.00   $       180.00  $       390.00  $    1,050.00   $       960.00 
4"  $       800.00   $       300.00  $       650.00  $    1,750.00   $    1,600.00 
6"  $    1,600.00   $       600.00  $    1,300.00  $    3,500.00   $    3,200.00 

 
For a residential user with a second 5/8ò meter on a single service line for water only irrigation 
service, the user shall be charged a single water demand and capital charge equivalent to a 3/4ò 
metered service on a year round basis. 
 
The demand charge for multiple residential units served by a single water meter shall be based on 
actual meter size provided the meter meets the minimum size requirement per the following table: 

 
Number of Apartments  Minimum Meter Size 

 
 1 - 3       5/8" 
 4 - 7       3/4" 
 8 - 11         1" 

     12 - 15     1&1/2" 
     16 - 24             2"  
 24 - 48         3ò 
 Over 48         4ò 



Draft 14 06-15-2015 

B. Fire Protection Service 
 

Sprinkler Service   Quarterly Water Charge         
             
    In-Town  Out-of-Town 
    Riser  Size   DEMAND CAPITAL     DEMAND 
       4 inch   $   48.00  $   18.00    $   96.00 
       6 inch  $   80.00 $   30.00    $ 160.00 
       8 inch  $ 160.00 $   60.00    $ 320.00 
      10 inch  $ 256.00 $   96.00    $ 512.00 

 
II. HYDRANT RENTAL CHARGES  
 

Hydrants located outside the City of Owosso and private hydrants maintained by the City of Owosso 
shall be subject to an annual hydrant rental charge of $155.  

 
III. BULK WATER CHARGES 
 

For users with an active city water service connection, bulk water delivered by the city from hydrants 
or other approved outlets for such purposes as pool filling, shall be charged at the standard metered 
usage rate given in Section I. above along with actual labor and equipment costs with a minimum 
charge of $50.00. 

Other bulk water sales, such as filling tank trucks, shall be charged at the rate of $10.00 per thousand 
gallons with a $50.00 minimum charge, which includes up to 5,000 gallons, if during the normal 
workday at an established city delivery point. After hours bulk water sales and/or sales at other than 
established city delivery points, shall be charged at the rate of $10.00 per thousand gallons plus 
actual labor and equipment costs. 
 
For customers who do not prepay a $10 service charge shall apply for invoicing. 
 
(Note: These charges do not apply to water supplied for fire fighting). 

 
IV.  INCREMENTAL WATER AND SEWER USAGE CHARGES FOR BILLING ADJUSTMENTS 

RELATED TO PLUMBING LEAKS  
 

The incremental water and sewer usage charges shall be 50% of the normal usage charge. These 
incremental usage rates are for the purpose of making adjustments to significantly high bills 
attributable to plumbing leaks and may be applied in accordance with Guidelines separately approved 
by the Owosso City Council.  

 
V. EXTRA STRENGTH WASTEWATER SURCHARGES 

 
Extra strength wastewater surcharges shall apply to those users of the City wastewater treatment 
system approved for the discharge of extra strength wastewater in accordance with Section 34-170. 
of the Owosso City Code. The surcharge rate shall be applied to loadings in excess of the base or 
normal strength loading.  

 
EXTRA STRENGTH WASTEWATER SURCHARGE SCHEDULE 

 
PARAMETER  BASE   SURCHARGE 

 
BOD-5   220 MG/L  $0.11/pound in excess of base 
TSS   300 MG/L  $0.17/pound in excess of base 
TP    10 MG/L  $1.50/pound in excess of base 
NH3-N    20 MG/L  $0.80/pound in excess of base 



Draft 15 06-15-2015 

(Note: BOD-5 = Biochemical Oxygen Demand; TSS = Total Suspended Solids; TP = Total 
Phosphorous; NH3-N = Ammonia Nitrogen; MG/L = Milligrams per Liter)." 

 
Motion supported by Councilperson Teich. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilpersons Greenway, Teich, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: Councilperson Fox. 
 
ABSENT: Councilpersons Bailey and Bandkau. 
 
Lease Agreement – Vactor Truck   
 
Councilperson Fox asked this item be pulled from the consent agenda to get some clarification.  After the 
discussion Councilperson Fox made a motion to approve the lease agreement for Vactor Truck as 
follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 60-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING 5-YEAR CAPITAL LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 
US BANK CORPORATION 

FOR A 2015 VACTOR MODEL 2115 COMBINATION SEWER CLEANING MACHINE 
AT $68,095.97 ANNUALLY 

   
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, maintains extensive sanitary and storm 
sewer systems which require ongoing cleaning and maintenance; and 
   
WHEREAS, on May 4, 2015 the City Council authorized the purchase of a 2015 Vactor Model 2115 
Combination Sewer Cleaning Machine, a vital piece of equipment used to clean and maintain these 
systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, an agreement has been negotiated with US Bank Corporation to finance this purchase.  
   
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee   
County, Michigan that:   
   

FIRST:  it has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the public interest to 
lease a 2015 Vactor Model 2115 Combination Sewer Cleaning Machine from US Bank 
Corporation for a 5-year term. 

 
SECOND:  The contract shall be a Lease Agreement* and the accounts payable department is 

authorized to submit the initial and subsequent annual payments to US Bank Corporation 
pursuant to the attached agreement up to $324,271.25.  

 
THIRD:  The contract shall be amended and negotiated to the satisfaction of the City Attorney.   

 
Motion supported by Councilperson Teich 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilpersons Fox, Greenway, Teich, and Mayor Frederick. 
 
NAYS: None 
 



Draft 16 06-15-2015 

ABSENT: Councilpersons Bailey and Bandkau. 
 
Bandkau Resignation (This item was added to the agenda.)   
 
Consider acceptance of Councilperson Bandkauôs letter of resignation and discuss the process to appoint a 
new member to fill the vacancy. 
 
Motion by councilperson Fox to accept Councilperson Bandkauôs resignation. 
  
Motion supported by Councilperson Greenway. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
 
AYES:   Councilperson Greenway, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilpersons Fox, Teich, and Mayor 

Frederick. 
 
NAYS:   None 
 
ABSENT:  Councilpersons Bailey and Bandkau. 
 
Mayor Frederick noted it was with regret they accepted Councilperson Bandkauôs resignation. 
 
Council then developed the following process for the appointment of a new member to fill the vacancy: 
 
Persons should send a letter of interest to the clerkôs office by noon on June 29th. Council will interview 
candidates at the July 6th regular council meeting.  Each council member will be allowed to ask one initial 
question and one follow up question. Those persons submitting letters of interest will be allowed to make a 
statement of up to five minutes.  
  
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth to approve the process noted above. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Teich. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES:  Councilpersons Greenway, Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth, Councilpersons Teich, Fox, Mayor  

Frederick. 
 
NAYS:    None. 
 
ABSENT:  Councilperson Bailey.    
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  May 2015 Police Report. 
Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  May 2015 Fire Report. 
Historical Commission.  Minutes of May 11, 2015. 
Zoning Board of Appeals.  Minutes of May 19, 2015. 
Parks & Recreation Commission.  Minutes of May 26, 2015. 
Planning Commission.  Minutes of May 26, 2015. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Joe Nowacki, 710 Ament Street. He is hoping the DPW will use the new Vactor truck to clean out the 
storm sewer near his house. He stated nothing has been done and it still stinks.  



Draft 17 06-15-2015 

 
Ed Urban, 601 Glenwwod Avenue, commented that he felt Dave Bandkau was one of the best 
councilpersons he has known. He also stated all councilpersons are doing a good job. 
 
Mayor Frederick shared that there is a group of volunteers that have formed a committee to create a 
veteranôs home in Shiawassee County. Currently there are no overnight options in Shiawassee County 
for veterans. He also invited everyone to a fundraiser for this purpose to be held at the Shiawassee 
County Fairground.  It is a Country Legends impersonator show to be held on July 3rd gates will open at 
5:30 and the event starts at 7:00. 
 
Councilperson Fox questioned if the project was being coordinated with the veteranôs affairs office in 
Corunna. Mayor Frederick assured him they are coordinating efforts with the veteranôs affairs office in 
Corunna. 
 
Councilperson Greenway inquired on particular sites for the veteranôs home. Mayor Frederick said he 
couldnôt comment on any particular site at this time. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, July 06, 2015 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Historical Commission, expires December 31, 2017 
Planning Commission, expires June 30, 2016 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Eveleth for adjournment at 8:34 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Councilperson Teich and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Benjamin R. Frederick, Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Roxane K. Cramer, Clerkôs Assistant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* Marked items are not included in the minutes due to their length.  Full text of these items is on file in the   
  Clerkôs Office. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
         301 W. MAIN   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  · (989) 725-0599  ·  FAX (989) 723-
8854 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:   July 1, 2015 
 
TO:   City Council 
 
FROM:   Kevin Lenkart 
 Director of Public Safety 
  
RE:   Traffic Control Order #1332 
 
 
Athena Kurtz, on behalf of the Ada Street Block Party Planning Committee, proposes 
the use of Ada Street, from King Street to Lee Streets.  This request is for the purpose 
of a neighborhood block party.  Requested date and time: 
 

Friday, July 31, 2015 
4 pm ï 10 pm 
 

 
The Public Safety Department has issued Traffic Control Order No. 1332 in accordance 
with the Rules for the Issuance of Certain Traffic Control Orders. Staff recommends 
approval, waiver of the insurance requirement, and authorization of a traffic control 
order formalizing the action. 
 
 
 

 
 
 



CITY OF OWOSSO 
 

TRAFFIC CONTROL ORDER 
 

(SECTION 2.53 UNIFORM TRAFFIC CODE) 
 

          
 ORDER NO.  DATE       TIME 

 1332    July 1, 2015  1:27 pm 
           
 REQUESTED BY 

Kevin Lenkart – Director of Public Safety 
 
           
 TYPE OF CONTROL 

Neighborhood Block Party – Blocking Streets 
 
           
 LOCATION OF CONTROL 

Ada Street, from King Street to Lee Street 
          
 EVENT 

Neighborhood Block Party 
           
 APPROVED BY COUNCIL  

                           , 20   
           
 REMARKS 
 
 Friday, July 31, 2015 
 4:00 p.m. – 10:00 p.m. 







 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

  301 W. MAIN  OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958  WW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
    
 
 
 
DATE:  July 2, 2015 
 
TO:  City Council 
  
FROM:  Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: Authorize Professional Services Agreement with Landmark Surveying, P.C. for Oliver 

Street Survey. 
 
 

 RECOMMENDATION:  
 

Authorize professional services agreement with Landmark Surveying, P.C., an in-City business, for land 
survey of Oliver Street from Washington Street to Gould Street. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
MDOT awarded a 2017 Small Urban grant to the City of Owosso for the proposed reconstruction of Oliver 
Street, from Washington Street to Gould Street.  The City is responsible for performing design engineering 
of the project in accordance with MDOT standards.  A land survey of the street must be performed to begin 
the design engineering process.  City engineering staff requested a quote from Landmark Surveying, 204 
N. Shiawassee Street, Owosso, MI, to perform the necessary land survey of the street project.  Landmark 
Surveying agrees to perform said work at a price of $10,300.00.  Because this is a special service and 
Landmark Surveying is the only known local servicer for this type of work, it is requested to waive regular 
bidding process and engage in a professional services agreement with them in the amount of $10,300.00. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Funds for this service are available in the 2010 General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bond Program. 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
WITH LANDMARK SURVEYING, P.C.  

FOR LAND SURVEY OF OLIVER STREET 
 
WHEREAS, the city has been awarded a 2017 Small Urban Projects Program grant to resurface Oliver 
Street from Washington Street to Gould Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city is responsible for the design engineering portion of the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, a survey of the land is required before beginning the design process; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city requested a quote from only local firm providing surveying services; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff received a quote from Landmark Surveying, P.C., 204 N. Shiawassee Street, 
Owosso, Michigan to perform the services in accordance with the óRequest for Quoteô, dated June 4, 
2015. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to employ Landmark Surveying, P.C. to provide land surveying services 
for the Oliver Street Resurfacing Project in the amount of $10,300.00. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in the form attached as Exhibit A, Professional Services Agreement for 
Oliver Street Survey between the City of Owosso, Michigan and Landmark Surveying, 
P.C. 

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Landmark Surveying, P.C. up to 

the contract amount upon successful completion of stated work. 
 
FOURTH: The above expense shall be paid for from the 2010 General Obligation Unlimited Tax 

Bond Program. 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Professional Services Agreement Between 
 

The City of Owosso 
 

and 
 

Landmark Surveying, P.C. 
 
 

Oliver Street Survey 
 
 
 

July 2015 
 

  



CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on July ____, 2015 between the CITY OF OWOSSO, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, 301 W. Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867 (ñcityò) and LANDMARK 
SURVEYING, P.C. (ñcontractorò), a Michigan company, whose address is 204 North Shiawassee 
Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867. 
 
Based upon the mutual promises below, the contractor and the city agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I - Scope of work 
The contractor agrees to provide the services listed in the request for quote entitled ñOliver Street 
Surveyò, as attached, including all written modifications incorporated into any of the documents, 
which are incorporated as part of this contract: 
  
 Proposals/Quotations 
 Contract and exhibits 
   
ARTICLE II - The Contract Sum 
(A) The city shall pay to the contractor for the performance of the contract, in the unit prices as 
given in the proposal not to exceed ten thousand three hundred dollars ($10,300.00).  No 
additional work shall be performed unless a change order is issued by the city. 
 
(B) The amount paid shall be equitably adjusted to cover changes in the work ordered by the city 
but not required by the contract documents where there is a written change order. 
 
ARTICLE III – Assignment 
This contract may not be assigned or subcontracted without the written consent of the city. 
 
ARTICLE IV - Choice of law 
This contract shall be construed, governed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Michigan.  By executing this agreement, the contractor and the city agree to a venue in a court of 
appropriate jurisdiction sitting within Shiawassee County for purposes of any action arising under 
this contract. 
 
Whenever possible, each provision of the contract will be interpreted in a manner as to be effective 
and valid under applicable law.  The prohibition or invalidity, under applicable law, of any provision 
will not invalidate the remainder of the contract. 
 
ARTICLE V - Relationship of the parties 
The parties of the contract agree that it is not a contract of employment but is a contract to 
accomplish a specific result.  Contractor is an independent contractor performing services for the 
city.  Nothing contained in this contract shall be deemed to constitute any other relationship 
between the city and the contractor. 
 
Contractor certifies that it has no personal or financial interest in the project other than the 
compensation it is to receive under the contract.  Contractor certifies that it is not, and shall not 
become, overdue or in default to the city for any contract, debt, or any other obligation to the city 
including real or personal property taxes.  City shall have the right to set off any such debt against 
compensation awarded for services under this agreement. 
 
ARTICLE VI – Notice 
All notices given under this contract shall be in writing, and shall be by personal delivery or by 
certified mail with return receipt requested to the parties at their respective addresses as specified 
in the contract documents or other address the contractor may specify in writing. 
 
  



 

ARTICLE VII - Indemnification 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, for any loss not covered by insurance under this contract; 
contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the city, its officers, employees and agents 
harmless from all suits, claims, judgments and expenses including attorneyôs fees resulting or 
alleged to result, in whole or in part, from any act or omission, which is in any way connected or 
associated with this contract, by the contractor or anyone acting on the contractorôs behalf under 
this contract.  Contractor shall not be responsible to indemnify the city for losses or damages 
caused by or resulting from the cityôs sole negligence. 
 
ARTICLE VIII - Entire agreement 
This contract represents the entire understanding between the city and the contractor and it 
supersedes all prior representations or agreements whether written or oral.  Neither party has 
relied on any prior representations in entering into this contract.  This contract may be altered, 
amended or modified only by written amendment signed by the city and the contractor. 
 
 
FOR CONTRACTOR     
 
By___________________________   
 
Its:___________________________   
 
Date:_________________________    
 
 
THE CITY OF OWOSSO  
 
By___________________________  By___________________________ 
  
Its: Benjamin R. Frederick, Mayor  Its: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
Date:_________________________   Date:_________________________ 
 
 









 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W MAIN  ∙   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 ∙   WWW.CI .OWOSSO.MI .US  
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE: July 1, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor Frederick and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
SUBJECT: Legal Notice Printing Bid Award 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
I recommend Council award the biennial contract for the printing of legal notices to The Argus-Press 
Company. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Every two years we collect bids for our legal printing needs.  These include notices for public 
hearings, meeting changes, snow removal reminders and publication of the Council meeting 
synopsis, among others.   
 
The only bid for this was received from The Argus-Press Company at $2.50 per column inch 
and $5.00 for affidavits of publication.  These prices represent no change from the bid they 
offered four years ago.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the legal notice printing bid from The Argus-Press Company at 
$2.50 per column inch and $5.00 per affidavit of publication. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
The City has spent approximately $3,500 each year for the past 2 years for the printing of legal notices.  
There has been talk for some time at the State level to allow municipalities to fulfill public notice 
requirements by posting notices to their website in lieu of printing them in a newspaper.  Currently, the 
City is required to print notices in a paper of local distribution as well as post to the website.  Should the 
State take action to relieve the City of the newspaper requirement language has been incorporated into 
the contract to allow the City to terminate the contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by:  Amy K. Kirkland   



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT  
FOR LEGAL ADVERTISING  

WITH THE ARGUS-PRESS COMPANY 
FOR THE 2015-16 AND 2016-17 FISCAL YEARS 

 
WHEREAS, various laws and ordinances applying to the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan, require publication of legal notices such as public hearing notices, meeting notices, 
and the minutes of meetings in a newspaper of general circulation; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso sought bids for the publication of required items; a bid was 
received from The Argus-Press Company; and it is hereby determined that The Argus-Press 
Company is qualified to provide such services and that it has submitted the only bid. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary 
and in the public interest to employ The Argus-Press Company for legal 
advertising for the fiscal years 2015-16 and 2016-17. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document 

substantially in the form attached as Exhibit A, Contract for Services 
Between the City of Owosso, Michigan and The Argus-Press Company, with 
a unit price of $2.50 per column inch and $5.00 per affidavit of publication. 

 
THIRD: Authorization is given for the above expenses to be paid from the General 

Fund according to unit prices. 
 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract for Services Between 
 

The City of Owosso 
 

and 
 

The Argus-Press Company 
 
 

Legal Notice Printing Services 
 
 
 

July 2015 
 

  



CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on July ____, 2015 between the CITY OF OWOSSO, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, 301 W. Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867 (ñcityò) and THE 
ARGUS-PRESS COMPANY (ñcontractorò), a Michigan company, whose address is 201 E. 
Exchange Street, Owosso, Michigan  48867. 
 
Based upon the mutual promises below, the contractor and the city agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I - Scope of work 
The contractor agrees to provide the services listed in the proposal entitled ñLegal Notices Printing 
Proposalò, as attached, including all written modifications incorporated into any of the documents, 
which are incorporated as part of this contract: 
  
 Bid forms 
 Bid pages 
 Proposals/Quotations 
 Contract and exhibits 
 Bonds 
 General conditions 
 Standard specifications 
 Detailed specifications 
  
ARTICLE II - The Contract Sum 
(A) The city shall pay to the contractor for the performance of the contract, in the unit prices as 
given in the proposal not to exceed four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) per fiscal year.  No 
additional work shall be performed unless a change order is issued by the city. 
 
(B) The amount paid shall be equitably adjusted to cover changes in the work ordered by the city 
but not required by the contract documents where there is a written change order. 
 
ARTICLE III – Assignment 
This contract may not be assigned or subcontracted without the written consent of the city. 
 
ARTICLE IV - Choice of law 
This contract shall be construed, governed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Michigan.  By executing this agreement, the contractor and the city agree to a venue in a court of 
appropriate jurisdiction sitting within Shiawassee County for purposes of any action arising under 
this contract. 
 
Whenever possible, each provision of the contract will be interpreted in a manner as to be effective 
and valid under applicable law.  The prohibition or invalidity, under applicable law, of any provision 
will not invalidate the remainder of the contract. 
 
ARTICLE V - Relationship of the parties 
The parties of the contract agree that it is not a contract of employment but is a contract to 
accomplish a specific result.  Contractor is an independent contractor performing services for the 
city.  Nothing contained in this contract shall be deemed to constitute any other relationship 
between the city and the contractor. 
 
Contractor certifies that it has no personal or financial interest in the project other than the 
compensation it is to receive under the contract.  Contractor certifies that it is not, and shall not 
become, overdue or in default to the city for any contract, debt, or any other obligation to the city 
including real or personal property taxes.  City shall have the right to set off any such debt against 
compensation awarded for services under this agreement. 
 



 

ARTICLE VI – Notice 
All notices given under this contract shall be in writing, and shall be by personal delivery or by 
certified mail with return receipt requested to the parties at their respective addresses as specified 
in the contract documents or other address the contractor may specify in writing. 
 
ARTICLE VII - Indemnification 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, for any loss not covered by insurance under this contract; 
contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the city, its officers, employees and agents 
harmless from all suits, claims, judgments and expenses including attorneyôs fees resulting or 
alleged to result, in whole or in part, from any act or omission, which is in any way connected or 
associated with this contract, by the contractor or anyone acting on the contractorôs behalf under 
this contract.  Contractor shall not be responsible to indemnify the city for losses or damages 
caused by or resulting from the cityôs sole negligence. 
 
ARTICLE VIII - Entire agreement 
This contract represents the entire understanding between the city and the contractor and it 
supersedes all prior representations or agreements whether written or oral.  Neither party has 
relied on any prior representations in entering into this contract.  This contract may be altered, 
amended or modified only by written amendment signed by the city and the contractor. 
 
 
FOR CONTRACTOR     
 
By___________________________   
 
Its:___________________________   
 
Date:_________________________    
 
 
THE CITY OF OWOSSO  
 
By___________________________  By___________________________ 
  
Its: Benjamin R. Frederick, Mayor  Its: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
Date:_________________________   Date:_________________________ 
 
 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN     OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: July 6, 2015 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Mark Sedlak, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: 2015 Sidewalk Replacement Program Bid Award to Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
I recommend City Council accept the bid from Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt for the 2015 Sidewalk 
Replacement Program and award a contract to them in the amount of $61,125.00. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
On June 23, 2015, the city received bids from interested contractors for its 2015 Sidewalk Replacement 
Program. This program replaces small sections of residential sidewalk that have been raised by tree roots, or 
are substandard in one way or another.  We plan to finish the Northwest Quadrant this year.  I recommend 
Council approve the 2015 Sidewalk Replacement Program contract to the lowest bidder, Bibi, Inc. aka Black 
Jack Asphalt, in the amount of $61,125.00 and approve payment up to the contract amount.      
 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Funds for this work are to be charged to the Major and Local Street Maintenance Funds, Account Nos. 203-
463-728-000 and 202-463-728-000. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
  

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR 
THE 2015 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 

WITH BIBI, INC. AKA BLACK JACK ASPHALT 
  
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined sections of the sidewalk 
on various streets in the City have become misaligned, deteriorated, or damaged and that replacement is 
advisable, necessary and in the public interest, and 
  
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso sought bids for the replacement of these sections of sidewalk as part of 
the 2015 Sidewalk Replacement Program; a bid was received from Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt; and 
is hereby determined that Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt is qualified to provide such services and that it 
has submitted the lowest responsible and responsive bid; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST:        The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to employ Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt for replacement of sections of 
damaged or misaligned sidewalk as part of the 2015 Sidewalk Replacement Program. 

  
SECOND:   The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the document substantially 

in the form attached as Exhibit A, Contract for Services between the City of Owosso, 
Michigan and Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt, in the amount of $61,125.00. 

 
THIRD:        The accounts payable department is authorized to pay Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt 

up to the contract amount upon satisfactory completion of work. 
 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the Major and Local Street Maintenance Funds, 

accounts 203-463-728-000 and 202-463-728-000. 
  
 









 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract for Services Between 
 

The City of Owosso 
 

and 
 

Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt 
 
 

2015 Sidewalk Replacement Program 
 
 

July 2015 
 

  



CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on July ____, 2015 between the CITY OF OWOSSO, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, 301 W. Main Street, Owosso, Michigan 48867 (ñcityò) and BIBI, INC. AKA 
BLACK JACK ASPHALT (ñcontractorò), a Michigan company, whose address is 470 North Old 
Woodward Avenue, Suite 250, Birmingham, Michigan  48009. 
 
Based upon the mutual promises below, the contractor and the city agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I - Scope of work 
The contractor agrees to furnish all of the materials, equipment and labor necessary and to abide 
by all the duties and responsibilities applicable to it for the project entitled ñ2015 Sidewalk 
Replacement Programò, in accordance with the requirements and provisions of the following 
documents, including all written modifications incorporated into any of the documents, which are 
incorporated as part of this contract: 
  
 Bid forms 
 Bid pages 
 Contract and exhibits 
 Bonds 
 General conditions 
 Standard specifications 
 Detailed specifications 
 Addendum No. 1 
  
ARTICLE II - The Contract Sum 
(A) The city shall pay to the contractor for the performance of the contract, the unit prices as given 
in the bid forms not to exceed sixty one thousand one hundred twenty five dollars ($61,125.00).  
No additional work shall be performed unless a change order is issued by the city. 
 
(B) The amount paid shall be equitably adjusted to cover changes in the work ordered by the city 
but not required by the contract documents where there is a written change order. 
 
ARTICLE III – Assignment 
This contract may not be assigned or subcontracted without the written consent of the city. 
 
ARTICLE IV - Choice of law 
This contract shall be construed, governed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Michigan.  By executing this agreement, the contractor and the city agree to a venue in a court of 
appropriate jurisdiction sitting within Shiawassee County for purposes of any action arising under 
this contract. 
 
Whenever possible, each provision of the contract will be interpreted in a manner as to be effective 
and valid under applicable law.  The prohibition or invalidity, under applicable law, of any provision 
will not invalidate the remainder of the contract. 
 
ARTICLE V - Relationship of the parties 
The parties of the contract agree that it is not a contract of employment but is a contract to 
accomplish a specific result.  Contractor is an independent contractor performing services for the 
city.  Nothing contained in this contract shall be deemed to constitute any other relationship 
between the city and the contractor. 
 
Contractor certifies that it has no personal or financial interest in the project other than the 
compensation it is to receive under the contract.  Contractor certifies that it is not, and shall not 
become, overdue or in default to the city for any contract, debt, or any other obligation to the city 



 

including real or personal property taxes.  City shall have the right to set off any such debt against 
compensation awarded for services under this agreement. 
 

ARTICLE VI – Notice 
All notices given under this contract shall be in writing, and shall be by personal delivery or by 
certified mail with return receipt requested to the parties at their respective addresses as specified 
in the contract documents or other address the contractor may specify in writing. 
 
ARTICLE VII - Indemnification 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, for any loss not covered by insurance under this contract; 
contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the city, its officers, employees and agents 
harmless from all suits, claims, judgments and expenses including attorneyôs fees resulting or 
alleged to result, in whole or in part, from any act or omission, which is in any way connected or 
associated with this contract, by the contractor or anyone acting on the contractorôs behalf under 
this contract.  Contractor shall not be responsible to indemnify the city for losses or damages 
caused by or resulting from the cityôs sole negligence. 
 
ARTICLE VIII - Entire agreement 
This contract represents the entire understanding between the city and the contractor and it 
supersedes all prior representations or agreements whether written or oral.  Neither party has 
relied on any prior representations in entering into this contract.  This contract may be altered, 
amended or modified only by written amendment signed by the city and the contractor. 
 
 
FOR CONTRACTOR     
 
By___________________________   
 
Its:___________________________   
 
Date:_________________________    
 
 
THE CITY OF OWOSSO  
 
By___________________________  By___________________________ 
  
Its: Benjamin R. Frederick, Mayor  Its: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
Date:       Date:  
 
 



ADDENDUM NO. 1 TO CONTRACT 
FOR 

2015 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM WITH 
BIB, INC. AKA BLACK JACK ASPHALT 

 
This addendum is attached and made part of the contract for the 2015 Sidewalk Replacement Program 
dated July ______, 2015 between the city of Owosso, Michigan (owner) and Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack 
Asphalt (Contractor). 
 

2015 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT PROGRAM 
 

ADDITIONAL TERMS 
 
The General Notes contained within the 2015 Sidewalk Program Bid document shall be amended to include 
the following: 
 

All open cuts shall be properly barricaded to prevent vehicle and/or foot traffic.  No 
open area shall remain open for more than 14 days. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and date first 
above written. 
 
Approved July 6, 2015 
 
For the contractor:      For the owner: 

Bibi, Inc. aka Black Jack Asphalt         City of Owosso, Michigan 
   
 

 
 
By: ___________________________________  By: ___________________________________                                                  
Name:              Benjamin R. Frederick 
Its:                   Mayor 
 
By: ___________________________________  By: ___________________________________ 
Name:               Amy K. Kirkland 
Its:             City Clerk 
 
 
Executed: ______________________, 2015  Executed: ______________________, 2015
 
 



 

 
 

WARRANT 505  
             June 30, 2015      

      
Vendor Description Fund Amount 

    
Shiawassee Area 
Transportation Agency 

Annual Local Funding 
Commitment-FY 15/16 
 

General 
 

$72,202.09 

Michigan Municipal League 
Workers’ Compensation 
Fund. 

Worker’s Compensation 
Insurance 

Various $19,823.00 
 

 
Owosso Charter Township 

 
Owosso charter township 2011 
water agreement payment-April 
–June 2015 
 

 
Water 

 
$ 9,151.91 

Caledonia Charter Township 
 

Caledonia utility fund payment- 
April – June 2015 

Water $18,308.09 

  TOTAL         $119,485.09 
 

    
 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W MAIN  ∙   OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958 ∙   WWW.CI .OWOSSO.MI .US  
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE: July 1, 2015 
 
TO: Mayor Frederick and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk  
 
SUBJECT: Letters of Interest for open City Council seat 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
None. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Following is the list of those that submitted letters of interest: 
 
 Michael Cline 
 Michael OôLeary 
 
Both candidates possess the qualifications necessary to serve on the Council and their letters of interest 
are included for your review. 
 
Both candidates will be contacted to ensure they are aware of the process Council has established to 
conduct the appointment: 
 

1. 5-minute statement to Council 
2. Council question and answer period 
3. Selection of new Council member 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Impossible to calculate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Document originated by: Amy K. Kirkland   











1

Amy K. Kirkland

From: Benjamin Frederick <benjaminrfrederick@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 01, 2015 2:20 PM
To: Amy K. Kirkland
Subject: Fwd: Resignation

---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: <Sean_Grey@usc.salvationarmy.org> 
Date: Wed, Jul 1, 2015 at 8:42 AM 
Subject: Re: Resignation 
To: Benjamin Frederick <benjaminrfrederick@gmail.com> 
 

Mayor Ben, 
 
Due to having been reassigned by The Salvation Army to Hillsdale, MI, please accept my resignation from the SATA 
Board. Praying all is well. God bless and have a great day. 

Sean D. Grey 
Captain 
Corps Officer 
Hillsdale Corps 
160 E Bacon 
Hillsdale, MI 49242 
Office: (517)-437-4240 
Cell: (517)-610-2966 

 



Date:              06/15/2015

Subject:           Building Department Report for May, 2015

From:              Charles Rau, Building Official

To:                  Owosso City Council

Category Estimated Cost Permit Fee Number of Permits

Demolition $3,000 $190 2
Electrical $0 $1,720 11
Fence - Commercial $4,000 $110 1
Fence - Residential $7,450 $320 4
Mechanical $0 $3,370 23
Non-Res. Add/Alter/Repair $894,500 $12,345 4
Plumbing $0 $2,290 15
Res. Add/Alter/Repair $68,020 $1,290 13
Res. Mobile $0 $1,960 7
Res. Single Family $150,000 $2,434 1
Res. Utility Building $3,750 $260 3
Sign $350 $90 1
ZONING $2,400 $80 1

MMS

Totals $26,459 86$1,133,470

BUILDING PERMITS ONLY          -          31

2014 COMPARISON TOTALS

$289,615 $10,112MAY, 2014 TOTALS 50



1/7Enforcements By Category 06/15/15

MAY, 2015

RentalPrevious Status

AUTO REP/JUNK VEH
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0241 Resolved 05/08/15 06/07/151108 MEADOW DR REF TO POLICE N

ENF 15-0314 REF TO POLICE 05/26/15238 HOYT ST REF TO POLICE N

ENF 15-0359 Complaint Logged 05/29/151311 MACK ST REF TO POLICE N

Total  Entries: 3

RentalPrevious Status

BUILDING VIOL
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0233 REF TO RAU 05/04/151107 HANOVER ST REF TO RAU VAC

ENF 15-0238 REF TO RAU 05/08/15813 BRADLEY ST REF TO RAU N

ENF 15-0243 Resolved 05/11/15 05/26/15200 W MAIN ST REF TO PALMER COMM

ENF 15-0244 Resolved 05/11/15 05/12/15120 N WASHINGTON ST WALK THRU INSPECT COMM

ENF 15-0259 REF TO RAU 05/15/15200 W MAIN ST REF TO RAU COMM

ENF 15-0267 REF TO RAU 05/18/151603 FREDERICK ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0301 Resolved 05/20/15 05/21/15518 KEYTE ST REF TO RAU N

ENF 15-0320 Resolved 05/26/15 05/27/151204 PALMER AV REF TO TYLER Y

ENF 15-0322 No Violation 05/26/15 05/28/15411 GUTE ST REF TO RAU N

ENF 15-0327 Letter Sent 05/26/15600 LINCOLN AV VN SENT VAC

ENF 15-0342 Resolved 05/28/15 05/28/151260 ADAMS ST REF TO DPW VAC

ENF 15-0344 Resolved 05/28/15 06/11/15514 W OLIVER ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0356 Resolved 05/29/15 06/01/15775 S CHESTNUT ST VERBAL NOTICE COMM

ENF 15-0358 Resolved 05/29/15 06/02/15224 S CEDAR ST VERBAL NOTICE Y

ENF 15-0360 Letter Sent 05/29/151311 MACK ST VN SENT N

Total  Entries: 15

RentalPrevious Status

FRONT YARD PARKING
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed



2/7Enforcements By Category 06/15/15

MAY, 2015

ENF 15-0229 Resolved 05/04/15 05/25/15913 HUNTINGTON DR REF TO POLICE N

ENF 15-0253 Resolved 05/12/15 06/09/15809 E KING ST REF TO RAU N

Total  Entries: 2

RentalPrevious Status

GARBAGE & DEBRIS
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0230 Resolved 05/04/15 05/06/151604 W STEWART ST REF TO DPW Y

ENF 15-0231 Resolved 05/04/15 06/09/15647 N WATER ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0232 Resolved 05/04/15 05/22/15611 ADAMS ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0234 Resolved 05/05/15 05/19/15220 S OAK ST REF TO POLICE N

ENF 15-0240 Resolved 05/08/15 06/15/15620 WRIGHT AV REF TO SEDLAK Y

ENF 15-0242 Resolved 05/11/15 05/19/15984 CORUNNA AV REF TO POLICE N

ENF 15-0249 Resolved 05/12/15 05/28/15409 PRINDLE ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0272 REF TO TYLER 05/18/151108 MEADOW DR REF TO TYLER N

ENF 15-0273 Resolved 05/18/15 05/19/151019 ADAMS ST REF TO POLICE VAC

ENF 15-0274 Resolved 05/19/15 05/19/15616 WOODLAWN AV REF TO TYLER N

ENF 15-0281 REF TO POLICE 05/19/151616 HERMAN ST REF TO POLICE N

ENF 15-0282 REF TO POLICE 05/19/15612 WOODLAWN AV REF TO POLICE N

ENF 15-0317 Resolved 05/26/15 05/29/15941 N SAGINAW ST REF TO TYLER VAC

ENF 15-0319 Resolved 05/26/15 06/01/151457 N MALLARD CIRCLE REF TO POLICE N

ENF 15-0325 REF TO POLICE 05/26/15631 WOODLAWN AV REF TO POLICE N

ENF 15-0330 Resolved 05/26/15 06/09/15626 WOODLAWN AV LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0348 Resolved 05/29/15 06/08/15800 STATE ST REF TO POLICE N

Total  Entries: 17

RentalPrevious Status

LAWN MAINTENANCE
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0235 Resolved 05/05/15 05/29/151108 MEADOW DR RESOLVED N



3/7Enforcements By Category 06/15/15

MAY, 2015

ENF 15-0236 Resolved 05/07/15 05/29/15422 BRANDON ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0237 Resolved 05/07/15 05/08/151740 W STEWART ST CHECKED N

ENF 15-0239 Resolved 05/08/15 05/21/151803 W STEWART ST INVOICED VAC

ENF 15-0246 Resolved 05/12/15 05/26/15616 LEE ST CLOSED N

ENF 15-0247 Resolved 05/12/15 05/26/15614 N HICKORY ST CLOSED N

ENF 15-0248 Resolved 05/12/15 05/27/15316 E WILLIAMS ST RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0254 Resolved 05/13/15 05/21/15714 WILTSHIRE DR RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0255 Resolved 05/13/15 05/21/15609 MARTIN ST RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0256 Resolved 05/14/15 05/21/15817 HUNTINGTON DR RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0275 Resolved 05/19/15 06/10/15526 HARRISON AV WO SUBMITTED VAC

ENF 15-0276 Letter Sent 05/19/15520 MILWAUKEE ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0277 Resolved 05/19/15 05/26/15205 S SHIAWASSEE ST CLOSED Y

ENF 15-0278 Resolved 05/19/15 06/12/151600 W STEWART ST CHECKED N

ENF 15-0279 Resolved 05/19/15 05/28/15770 COVENTRY AV INVOICED N

ENF 15-0280 Resolved 05/19/15 05/27/151318 W STEWART ST RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0283 Resolved 05/20/15 05/28/15701 FLETCHER ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0284 Resolved 05/20/15 05/27/15502 JENNETT ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0285 Resolved 05/20/15 05/28/151230 N SHIAWASSEE ST RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0286 Resolved 05/20/15 06/10/151260 ADAMS ST INVOICED VAC

ENF 15-0287 Resolved 05/20/15 05/29/15119 ELIZABETH ST RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0288 Resolved 05/20/15 05/27/151603 FREDERICK ST RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0289 Resolved 05/20/15 05/29/151019 ADAMS ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0290 Resolved 05/20/15 05/29/15811 WEST ST INVOICED VAC

ENF 15-0291 Resolved 05/20/15 05/27/15915 W STEWART ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0292 Resolved 05/20/15 06/11/15601 DIVISION ST CHECKED VAC

ENF 15-0293 Resolved 05/20/15 06/11/15319 E STEWART ST CHECKED VAC

ENF 15-0294 Resolved 05/20/15 06/08/15821 AMENT ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0295 Resolved 05/20/15 05/28/15900 S LYON ST RESOLVED VAC



4/7Enforcements By Category 06/15/15

MAY, 2015

ENF 15-0296 Resolved 05/20/15 05/28/15910 W STEWART ST RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0297 Resolved 05/20/15 05/27/151005 W STEWART ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0298 Resolved 05/20/15 05/28/15217 W STEWART ST RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0300 Resolved 05/20/15 05/28/15221 W STEWART ST RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0304 Resolved 05/21/15 06/10/15222 CASS ST INVOICED VAC

ENF 15-0305 Resolved 05/21/15 05/28/151101 N BALL ST RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0306 Resolved 05/21/15 05/28/15832 S BALL ST RESOLVED VAC

ENF 15-0307 Resolved 05/21/15 06/10/15911 S BALL ST INVOICED VAC

ENF 15-0311 Resolved 05/22/15 06/10/15930 JEROME AV INVOICED VAC

ENF 15-0312 Resolved 05/22/15 06/09/15816 ISHAM ST CHECKED Y

ENF 15-0323 Resolved 05/26/15 06/10/15306 CASS ST INVOICED N

ENF 15-0324 Resolved 05/26/15 06/09/15312 STATE ST CHECKED Y

ENF 15-0326 Resolved 05/26/15 06/09/15620 S SHIAWASSEE ST CHECKED Y

ENF 15-0328 Resolved 05/26/15 06/10/15309 GREEN ST INVOICED VAC

ENF 15-0329 Resolved 05/26/15 06/09/15401 STATE ST LETTER SENT Y-VAC 

ENF 15-0332 Resolved 05/27/15 06/09/151106 PALMER AV CHECKED N

ENF 15-0333 Resolved 05/27/15 06/09/15213 W STEWART ST CHECKED VAC? 

ENF 15-0334 Resolved 05/27/15 06/09/15618 S WASHINGTON ST CHECKED N

ENF 15-0335 Resolved 05/27/15 06/09/15800 RYAN ST CHECKED N

ENF 15-0336 Resolved 05/27/15 06/10/15526 E WILLIAMS ST INVOICED VAC

ENF 15-0337 Resolved 05/27/15 06/09/15317 E MASON ST CHECKED VAC

ENF 15-0338 Resolved 05/27/15 06/09/15519 E MASON ST CHECKED Y

ENF 15-0339 Resolved 05/27/15 06/10/15916 N WASHINGTON ST INVOICED VAC

ENF 15-0340 Resolved 05/27/15 06/09/151229 N SHIAWASSEE ST CHECKED N

ENF 15-0341 Resolved 05/27/15 06/11/151018 BEEHLER ST INVOICED VAC

ENF 15-0345 Resolved 05/28/15 06/09/15522 HARRISON AV CHECKED Y

ENF 15-0346 Resolved 05/28/15 06/10/15915 CORUNNA AV INVOICED VAC

ENF 15-0347 Resolved 05/28/15 06/09/15420 W HOWARD ST CHECKED N



5/7Enforcements By Category 06/15/15

MAY, 2015

ENF 15-0349 Resolved 05/29/15 06/09/15833 BROADWAY AV CHECKED VAC

ENF 15-0350 Resolved 05/29/15 06/09/15909 N HICKORY ST CHECKED Y

ENF 15-0351 Letter Sent 05/29/15806 S SAGINAW ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0352 Letter Sent 05/29/15813 S PARK ST LETTER SENT N

ENF 15-0353 Letter Sent 05/29/15219 N CEDAR ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0354 Letter Sent 05/29/15553 HARRISON AV LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0355 Resolved 05/29/15 06/08/15524 HARRISON AV RESOLVED N

ENF 15-0357 Resolved 05/29/15 06/11/15424 GROVER ST INVOICED N

ENF 15-0361 Resolved 05/29/15 06/08/151311 MACK ST RESOLVED N

Total  Entries: 66

RentalPrevious Status

MULTIPLE VIOLATIONS
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0245 REF TO POLICE 05/11/15616 LEE ST REF TO POLICE N

ENF 15-0260 Extension Granted 05/15/151307 STATE ST EXTENSION GRANTED VAC

ENF 15-0310 REF TO POLICE 05/21/15502 JENNETT ST REF TO POLICE N

ENF 15-0321 Complaint Logged 05/26/15411 GUTE ST REF TO POLICE RAU N

ENF 15-0343 REF TO POLICE 05/28/15519 E MASON ST REF TO POLICE Y

Total  Entries: 5

RentalPrevious Status

RENTAL UNIT VIOL
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0250 REF TO TYLER 05/12/15520 N PARK ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0251 Resolved 05/12/15 05/26/15409 E WILLIAMS ST LETTER SENT Y

ENF 15-0252 Resolved 05/12/15 06/02/15414 GENESEE ST LETTER SENT Y

Total  Entries: 3

RentalPrevious Status

SIGN VIOL
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed



6/7Enforcements By Category 06/15/15

MAY, 2015

ENF 15-0303 REF TO RAU 05/21/15202 W EXCHANGE ST REF TO RAU COMM

Total  Entries: 1

RentalPrevious Status

VACANT PROPERTY REG
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0261 Letter Sent 05/15/151307 STATE ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0262 Resolved 05/18/15 05/29/15107 S HICKORY ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0263 Resolved 05/18/15 06/01/15909 ADAMS ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0264 Resolved 05/18/15 06/01/15713 BROADWAY AV LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0265 Letter Sent 05/18/151416 W MAIN ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0266 Resolved 05/18/15 05/29/151127 S SHIAWASSEE ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0268 Resolved 05/18/15 05/29/151135 S SHIAWASSEE ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0269 Letter Sent 05/18/151107 HANOVER ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0270 Letter Sent 05/18/15316 E WILLIAMS ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0271 Letter Sent 05/18/151603 FREDERICK ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0299 Resolved 05/20/15 06/08/15215 STATE ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0302 Letter Sent 05/21/15222 CASS ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0308 Resolved 05/21/15 06/09/151101 N BALL ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0309 Letter Sent 05/21/15911 S BALL ST LETTER SENT VAC

ENF 15-0318 Resolved 05/26/15 06/15/15941 N SAGINAW ST LETTER SENT VAC

Total  Entries: 15

RentalPrevious Status

ZONING
StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

ENF 15-0257 Resolved 05/14/15 06/09/151609 W MAIN ST TICKET WILL BE ISSUED WHEN VIOLATION IS OBSERVED N

ENF 15-0258 Resolved 05/14/15 05/22/15734 N HICKORY ST REF TO POLICE Y

ENF 15-0313 Complaint Logged 05/26/15313 LAFAYETTE BL REF TO RAU N

ENF 15-0315 No Violation 05/26/15 05/26/151624 W MAIN ST REF TO RAU Y



7/7Enforcements By Category 06/15/15

MAY, 2015

ENF 15-0316 No Violation 05/26/15 05/26/15720 W STEWART ST REF TO RAU COMM

ENF 15-0331 Resolved 05/27/15 06/01/15910 E MAIN ST VERBAL NOTICE COMM

Total  Entries: 6

RENTAL COLUMN DEFINITIONS

Y - Yes, it's a rental
N - No, it's not a rental - owner occupied
APTS - Apartment Building
COMM - Commercial
REPO - Repossession
TRAIL - Trailer Park
VAC - Vacant House
VL - Vacant Lot
IND - Industrial
HOME OCC - Home Occupied

Total Records: 133 Total Pages: 7



Page 1     Approved June 17, 2015 

MINUTES FOR  
REGULAR MEETING 

OWOSSO HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 20, 2015, 6:00 p.m.   

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER at 6:00 p.m. by Chairman Newman 
 
ROLL CALL was taken by Marty Stinson. 
 
PRESENT:  Chairman Scott Newman; Secretary Philip Hathaway, Commissioners Lance Omer, 
Matthew Van Epps and Gary Wilson.  
 
ABSENT:   Vice-Chairman Vince Gonyou. 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:   Susan Montenegro, Assistant City Manager / Director of 
Community Development; Josh Adams, Owosso Main Street Manager; Linda Keenan, Owosso 
Community Players; Jeremy Martin, contractor for Apple Tree Lane, 207 N. Washington; Adam 
and Casey Voss, 108 W. Main Street. 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:  Motion by Commissioner Van Epps and supported by 
Commissioner Hathaway to approve the Agenda for May 20, 2015 as presented. 
Yeas all.  Motion was passed. 
 
MINUTES APPROVAL:  Motion by Commissioner Wilson and supported by Commissioner 
Hathaway to approve the minutes of the meeting for April 15, 2015 with the correction of 
page three, second paragraph, second sentence to read, “He wants the help of the 
Commission.” 
Yeas all.  Motion was passed. 
 
Communications: 

1. Staff Memorandum 
2. Meeting minutes of April 15, 2015  

 
Public / Commission Comments:  None 
 
Committee Reports: None 
 
Public Hearings: None 
 
Items of Business: 
1) 122 E. Main St. – Marquee Application for the Lebowsky Center 
 
Commissioner Hathaway excused himself from voting on this application because he is involved 
with the theater committee.  
 
Linda Keenan, Interim Executive Director of the Owosso Community Players asked the board to 
approve the plan for the marquee.  During the initial reconstruction after the fire, the plans for the 
marquee were cut from the plan due to expenses.  She explained that this is a 1950’s look with 
the red panels.  They don’t want to tear down the marquee per the guidelines.  They have 
received a grant from Michigan Council for Arts and Cultural Affairs with the rebuilding of the 
marquee.  Ms. Kennan distributed a picture from the ‘50’s of the Apollo Theater from New York.  



Page 2     Approved June 17, 2015 

The Lebowsky marquee needs to be updated for patron and volunteer’s safety from 20 ft. ladder 
next to M-21 and various weather conditions.  It will look like 1950, but will have LED panels.  
There will be two panels on the sides.  The yellow lights will be energy efficient.  The theater is a 
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certified building.  The plans meet all 
standards for historic according to Ed Francis, historic theater expert.  It will have traditional black 
and red lettering and displays will be static.  The policy is not to advertise for profit organizations.  
OPC will adhere to downtown ordinances.  There will be no direct lighting into residences, etc.   
 
Commissioner Van Epps asked if the yellow LED light bulbs would be allowed to track.  Yes.  But 
that was allowed before.  There will be no search lights allowed.  Same as it was as if there was 
no fire. 
 
Commissioner Wilson commented that the letter from Mr. Francis satisfied any questions he 
would have.  It should be eligible for certificate of appropriateness. 
 
6:20 p.m.  Commissioner Hathaway left the room.   
 
Commissioner Omer asked if this is this high definition.  The answer was yes.    
 
Motion by Commissioner Wilson, supported by Commissioner Omer that the Owosso 
Downtown Historic District Commission, finding that the proposed exterior improvements 
at 122-124 E. Main Street meets all the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards, as well as 
local standards, hereby directs staff to issue a Certificate of Appropriateness for the work 
and building permit application as applied for and illustrated, conditioned upon the 
following: 

1.  Movement on the screen and animation will be left off;  
2.  The LED marquee lighting will replicate the previous Owosso Community  

  Players sign.   
Yeas all.  Hathaway abstained.  Motion was passed. 
 
Commissioner Hathaway was brought back to the room. 
 
2.  207 N. Washington Street – Façade Improvement Application 
Contractor Jeremy Martin was present.  He described the project which will be minus the awning.  
The OSB that is peeling will be replaced and he will remove the outer layer to the stud framing 
and reapply with a raised panel look.  
 
Mr. Josh Adams, Main Street Director, mentioned this was the design that Main Street suggested 
for Façade Design a couple years ago.  Discussion about signs followed.  She now has a window 
sign.  Back behind sign and awning, Mr. Martin is replacing that area with real wood.  OK with 
goose neck lighting per the board, though they may not be doing it at this time.  This building is a 
contributing structure. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Van Epps, supported by Commissioner Hathaway that the 
Owosso Downtown Historic District Commission, finding that the proposed exterior 
improvements at 207 N. Washington Street do not meet the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards, and are inappropriate for the district, hereby directs staff to issue a Notice to 
Proceed for the work and building permit application as applied for and illustrated. 
Yeas all.  Motion was passed. 
 
3.  108 W. Main Street – Sign Application 



Page 3     Approved June 17, 2015 

Mr. Adam Voss wants to change the sign at 108 W. Main.  This will be a lounge barber shop – an 
old vintage barber shop.  He wants to paint the sign black and remove the Mystic Vision sign, and 
use flat vinyl lettering with vintage font.  He can have smooth flat vinyl sign board.  He also asked 
if he could paint the brick black.  Voss also asked about the steel overhang – could he take it 
down.  The metal is very rusted above the awning.   
 
Chairman Newman thought it was 50’s style.  We’re not supposed to paint brick.  Commissioner 
Wilson noted that if we allow brick to be painted, we lose our credibility.  We also have a case 
pending about painted brick.   
 
Commissioner Hathaway noted that when Gordon Graham was working in town, he painted 
bricks because they were soft.  Mr. Hathaway didn’t see these as soft bricks.  
Discussion about painting just the face of brick without setting a precedent.  Commissioner 
Wilson talked about painting to match the brick on the second floor.   
 
Materials for the sign per Commissioner Wilson should be consistent at the time when the 
building was built.  Vinyl wouldn’t be consistent at the time of the building.  Mr. Voss asked about 
the style of lettering.  Gary commented that it’s the materials and lighting that this commission is 
concerned about.   
 
7 p.m.  Mr. Adam Voss left for an appointment; Mrs. Casey Voss replaced him at the podium.   
 
Mr. Josh Adams called Mr. John Beilfuss at Lula’s and asked if his sign had vinyl lettering.  Mr. 
Beilfuss replied that it was synthetic and not hand painted.  It was recommendation by 
Commissioner Hathaway for Mr. Adams to review administrative sign policy.  Van Epps reviewed 
some of the Rob McKay letter, and commented about Lula’s sign.  Phil commented that he likes 
relief and textures.  Commissioner Wilson liked the language from Rob McKay – basically saying 
it’s a judgment call.   
 
Motion by Commissioner Van Epps, seconded by Commissioner Hathaway finding that the 
proposed sign 108 W. Main Street does not meet the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards, 
and is inappropriate for the district, hereby directs staff to issue a Notice to Proceed for 
the work and building permit application as applied for and illustrated with an interest of 
dimensionality with vinyl lettering with vinyl backing that fits the marquee. 
Yeas all.  Motion was passed. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Omer, seconded by Commissioner Hathaway finding that the 
proposed painting of the brick at 108 W. Main Street does not meet the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards, and is inappropriate for the district, hereby directs staff to issue a 
notice to proceed to paint brick, but not to paint the mortar to match the original brick 
above.   
Yeas all.  Motion was passed. 
 
Per Mrs. Voss, the inside of the building is going to be really cool with the antique styling and 
items that have been found at this building.   
 
4.  202 W. Exchange Street – Parge Remedy 
Mr. Dedic was invited to this meeting with no response.  He was not in attendance.  
Commissioner Wilson talked to a technical consultant about the makeup of the product on the 
building.  It was recommended to use 505 to remove the parge.  Per Chairman Newman much of 



Page 4     Approved June 17, 2015 

the application was done improperly and it will eventually be easy to remove.    Per 
Commissioner Van Epps, we should send a letter instead of pursuing prosecution. 
 
Mr. Adams suggested testing on the left side where it is thickest.  The rest should come off.  
Commissioner Wilson said it’s not the easiest thing to do.  It may take multiple applications to do.  
Discussion continued about the parge / paint. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Wilson, supported by Commissioner Omer to send Mr. Dedic a 
letter about removing the parge with the product 505 with an appropriate time to do it.  He 
is to start by July 1st and complete the project this construction season.  This is to be done 
under the supervision of the city.  The surrounding area has to be protected because this 
is caustic material and could take paint off of cars.  Manufacturer’s instructions are to be 
followed. 
Yeas all.  Motion was passed. 
 
Public Comments:  None 
 
Board Comments:  None 
 
ADJOURNMENT:   
It was moved by Commissioner Van Epps and supported by Commissioner Hathaway to 
adjourn at 7:35 p.m. until June 17, 2015. 
Yeas all.  Motion was passed. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Phil Hathaway, Secretary 
 
mms 
 



 

Page 1  draft    

MINUTES FOR  
REGULAR MEETING 

OWOSSO HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, June 17, 2015, 6:00 p.m.   

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER at 6:03 p.m. by Chairman Newman 
 
ROLL CALL was taken by Sue Montenegro. 
 
PRESENT:  Chairman Scott Newman, Commissioners Matthew Van Epps, Gary Wilson and Secretary 
Hathaway. 
 
ABSENT:  Vice-Chairman Vince Gonyou, Commissioner Lance Omer. 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:   Susan Montenegro, Assistant City Manager / Director of Community 
Development; Corrine & Jeff Adams, Mayor Ben Frederick 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:  Motion by Commissioner Hathaway, supported by Commissioner Van Epps 
to approve the Agenda for June 17, 2015 as presented. 
Yeas all.  Motion was passed. 
 
MINUTES APPROVAL:  Motion by Commissioner, supported by Commissioner Wilson to approve 
the minutes of the meeting for May 20, 2015. 
Yeas all.  Motion was passed. 
 
Communications: 

1. Staff Memorandum 
2. Meeting minutes of May 20, 2015  

 
Public / Commission Comments:  None 
 
Committee Reports: None 
 
Public Hearings: None 
 
Items of Business: 
1) 115 E. Main Street – Perpendicular Blade-Sign Application 
 
Corrine & Jeff Adams presented photos of the sign they would like to place at their business.  A drawing 
was also presented depicting how the sign will be installed.  The sign is made of double thick plywood and 
is 4’X4’ in size.  Forged iron will be used to create the hardware to hang the sign.  Jeff talked to Mark 
Agnew today about installation on how to mount.  The ordinance stipulates the sign can be no lower than 
nine feet.  A photo from approximately 1946 was presented showing the Snooty Fox or Elite Restaurant 
that was in the same location along with the signage used during that era. Discussion was held about 
placing the sign where the original signage hung.  Commissioner Hathaway stated the architectural 
elements need to be preserved and that the sign must be hung either clearly above or below the cornice or 
transom.   Chairman Newman likes the idea of hanging the sign between two of the windows because it 
would not cause irreparable damage to the brick if the sign needed to be moved.   
 
Motion by Commissioner Hathaway, supported by Commissioner Wilson that the Owosso 
Downtown Historic District Commission, finding that the proposed exterior improvements at 115 E. 
Main Street meets all the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards, as well as local standards, hereby 
directs staff to issue a Certificate of Appropriateness for the work and building permit application 



 

Page 2  draft    

as applied for and illustrated, conditioned that the sign is placed on the sidewall or the center of the 
building between the windows.  Additionally, the windows shall be obstruction free. 
Yeas all.  Motion was passed. 
 
2.  200 W. Main Street – Perpendicular Blade-sign application 
No one was present to represent the owner of the business.  Commission members passed on this item 
 
3.  109 E. Comstock Street – Mural Discussion 
 
Mayor Frederick discussed the proposed mural for the Indian Trail’s (Wildermuth Hotel) building and 
shared that he is the great grandson of Wildermuth.  Indian Trails has been doing some repairs and tuck 
pointing.  The original sign has a marquee with the signage.  Below the sign were lettering and numbers 
that advertised prices at that time.  The quote from the artist is for the mural is $2500. Indian trails will 
donate $500 and a lift for the project.  The artist will brings renderings next month and personally address 
the commission with hopes of starting in August.  The sign is a ghost sign and will be brought back to life.  
Chairman Newman stated he is excited about recreating ghost murals which is different than creating new 
murals. Commissioner Hathaway stated the mural does not violate Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
because “firewalls” were never façade walls.  Walls that face the street are different and should not have 
murals. Commissioner Hathaway suggested that Josh contact the Michigan Downtown Association to 
determine what their standards or process is.   
 
Public Comments:  None 
 
Board Comments:  Chairman Newman shared that a letter was sent by Josh Adams to Mr. Dedic that the 
commission had asked Chairman Newman to send.   The commission stated they did not have a problem 
with Josh sending the letter instead.  
 
ADJOURNMENT:   
It was moved by Commissioner Wilson and supported by Commissioner Van Epps to adjourn at 
6:46 p.m. until July 15, 2015. 
Yeas all.  Motion was passed. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Phil Hathaway, Secretary 
 
skm 
 



REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
OWOSSO DDA / MAIN STREET  
Council Chambers, City Hall  
June 3, 2015 – 7:30 am.   
 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER at 7:37 a.m. by Dave Acton.  
 
ROLL CALL was taken by Secretary Alaina Kraus. 
  
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chairman Dave Acton & Authority Members  Ken Cushman, Bill Gilbert, 
Benjamin Frederick, Lance Omer, Kevin Wiles, Dawn Gonyou (7:40) and Secretary Alaina 
Kraus 
  
MEMBERS ABSENT: Authority Member Char Haskins 
  
OTHERS PRESENT: Susan Montenegro, City of Owosso; Josh Adams, Main Street Manager; 
Helen Granger, press 
 
AGENDA: 
MOTION BY AUTHORITY MEMBER CUSHMAN SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
GILBERT TO APPROVE THE AGENDA FOR JUNE 3, 2015. 
YEAS ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 
  
MINUTES: 
MOTION BY AUTHORITY MEMBER CUSHMAN, SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
WILES TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF APRIL 1, 2014, AND APRIL 27, 
2014 SPECIAL MEETING. 
YEAS ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 
  
PUBLIC / BOARD / STAFF COMMENTS: 
None 
  
COMMITTEE UPDATES 
 
1) Design 
 
Beautification program is in full bloom.  Baskets have gone out going up from 60 to 70 mostly on 
irrigation. There a light in the tunnel bike racks.  Wayfinding is underway. 'I Spy' architectural 
game has a chairman for next year. 
 
Six of the wayfinding signs will be installed this fall and fundraising for the other six over the 
weekend. A sponsorship is $1500 and covers the insert, the pole & installation. The frames 
were covered by the bond.  
 
2) Economic Restructuring 
 



Discussed the information in the Market Study its impact and distribution. A training for the Ask 
Owosso team will be happening at the end of June. They will be pairs that build relationships 
and communications with downtown businesses.  
 
3) Organization 
 
Party in the Plaza will be happening in late July or August as a recognition and informational 
gathering for current and future volunteers. 
 
4) Promotion 
 
Focusing on Art Walk, Tour Our Town, and Sidewalk Sales (July 1719). Art Walk got a $1000 
sponsorship from LAFCU and Tour Our Town $500 from the Cook Family Foundation.  
 
ITEMS OF BUSINESS: 
 
1. CHECK REGISTER APPROVAL. 
  
SEE BOARD PACKET FOR CHECK REGISTER 
  
MOTION BY AUTHORITY MEMBER GILBERT, SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
OMER TO APPROVE THE CHECK REGISTER FOR APRIL AND MAY 2014 AS PRESENTED. 
YEAS ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 
  
2. BUDGET REPORT  
 
We will be in the green largely because we underestimated our tax capture combined with a 
smaller capital outlay and fund generation through fundraising. Unexpected nonrecurring 
expenses  the fountain pump, lawyer fees  went over their budgeted amounts and need to be 
adjusted in the budget for year end. 
 
MOTION BY AUTHORITY MEMBER WILES, SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
GILBERT TO APPROVE ADAMS TO ADD MONEY TO THE MAINTENANCE AND 
CONTRACTED SERVICES BUDGETS TO COVER OVERAGES. 
YEAS ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
Gilbert suggested a meeting with DPW postCurwood to review what maintenance is covered by 
the city and what is covered by Main Street. 
 
3. DOWNTOWN FOOD TRUCKS 
 
A traffic order was filed out for a food truck, but there was no framework for that so City Council 
requested Main Street to look into it. Adams spoke with the majority of the downtown restaurant 
owners about it and the general consensus was no. If necessary then it needs to be restricted.  
 
Frederick pointed out that it is a good problem but it does need structure and they do not pay 
taxes or maintenance and other expenses that brick and mortar restaurants. Other concerns 
include parking, pedestrians, and making certain they are within health and legal guidelines. 



 
This issue will go to the ER committee for discussion. 
 
4. MMS QUARTERLY TRAINING  OWOSSO 
 
Michigan Main Street will be doing quarterly training on June 89 in Owosso. Up to 65 people 
are expected at the Tuesday portion. Board training will be happening on Tuesday and is open 
to non profit boards in the area.  
 
Manager training starts at 1 pm on the 8th followed by a tour of downtown and a private dinner 
at Lula's which is open to Main Street board members. 
 
5. WESENER DEVELOPMENT UPDATE 
 
October 1st is the expected completion date. Now they are focusing on making sure the 
objectives are being met. It looks like it will be Leed Gold certified. They plan to share the 
business model once success is achieved. The focus is to be hyperlocal  buy as much locally 
as possible. 
 
The bookstore will move over to the Wesner once it is complete because the work that will then 
begin on the other building will be too disruptive to it. 
 
6. OMS/DDA OFFICE COMPUTER 
 
The office computer is currently using XP, which is a security risk. A desktop would be $1200 or 
a laptop for $15001600. Additional storage is also needed, which will be done in the form of a 
terabyte external drive. 
 
MOTION BY AUTHORITY MEMBER OMER, SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER 
GILBERT TO APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF A DESKTOP AND BACKUP DRIVE NOT 
EXCEEDING $1500 FROM THE 2015/2016 BUDGET. 
YEAS ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
PUBLIC / BOARD / STAFF COMMENTS: 
 
Frederick shared that Indian Trails has agreed to donate $500 + lift costs for the restoration of 
the south facing Wildermuth. About $1900 is still needed, but it could be done by July at the 
earliest.  
  
MOTION MADE BY GILBERT, SUPPORTED BY AUTHORITY MEMBER WILES TO 
ADJOURN AT 8:24 AM. 
YEAS ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 
  
  
____________________________________________________________ 
Alaina Kraus, Secretary 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 



draft 

 
Owosso Planning Commission – June 22, 2015  

1 
 

Minutes 
Regular Meeting of the Parks & Recreation Commission 

Monday, June 22, 2015 - 6:00 PM 
City Hall Council Chambers 

301 West Main Street 
      Owosso, MI  48867      
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER: Vice- Chair Jeff Selbig called the meeting to order at 6:04  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Was recited by all present 
 
ROLL COLL:   Roll Call was taken by Recording Secretary Denice Grace 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Vice-Chairman Jeff Selbig, Commissioner Shane Nelson, 

Commissioner Randy Woodworth. 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Chairman Mike Espich and Commissioner Kristen 

Woodbury 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Sue Montenegro, Assistant City Manager and Director of     
                                                           Director of Community Development 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER WOODWORTH, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER 
NELSON TO APROVE THE AGENDA FOR JUNE 22, 2015. 
YEAS ALL. MOTION CARRIED 

 
Approval of Minutes:   
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER NELSON, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER 
WOODWORTH TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FOR THE MAY 26, 2015 MEETING. 
YEAS ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 
 

1. Staff Memorandum 
2. May 26,2015 Minutes 
3. Keves Quote 

 
BUSINESS 
 

1. Skate Park- The quote for the skate park is higher than originally thought but the park 
will also be bigger than thought originally.   



draft 

 
Owosso Planning Commission – June 22, 2015  

2 
 

 
Ms. Montenegro and Commissioners Nelson and Woodworth met at the skate park with 
kids on June 16th to get their input. The kids were in favor of a bigger skate park. The 
kids also were in favor of fencing the area around the skate park to cut down on 
vandalism and graffiti. Advertising on the fences could also be utilized 
 
 
Different cities were shown for possible models for our skate park including Charlotte, 
Lansing, Saginaw and Clawson. Lansing has seating for spectators. Garbage 
receptacles are also recommended. 
 
Commissioner Woodworth worried about water retention in a bowl-shaped Skate Park.  
Drainage would also be an issue to consider. Lighting would also have to be taken into 
consideration. 
 
Commissioner Woodworth talked to local contractor Brian Marks of Great lakes Fusion 
Custom Concrete Creations about possibly doing the work.  
 
It was questioned whether to go with the original $6,000 quoted a couple of years ago 
for the pad or to apply for a grant or to get area businesses to donate funds to make a 
larger skate park.  Possible fundraising ideas included having an event at the Owosso 
amphitheater and a bike ride in which an admission charge could be used to help raise 
funds. Nicholas Pidek was mentioned as someone who could help organize a race or 
event. John Hankerd was also mentioned as a possibility to help organize and promote a 
fund-raiser for the skate park. 
 
Clawson has a skate board committee and has close to the same size blueprint as 
Owosso but they have more income. Someone is needed to design a skate park plan. 
Ms. Montenegro showed a view of a lot next to the skate park on Wright Street that is 
126’ x 66’. Ms. Montenegro is also worried about the current skate park being located in 
the flood plain. A second proposed site is on Monroe Street and is on higher ground. 
Everyone likes the Monroe Street site better for site location and size.  
 
Ms. Montenegro will meet with Chairman Espich to discuss the situation further with him. 
The kids could also be involved in any further discussion before a decision is made.  
. 
MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER WOODWORTH, SUPPORTED BY 
COMMISSIONER NELSON TO MOVE TO TABLE THE CURRENT QUOTE FORM 
KEVES. NO FURTHER DISCUSSION AT THIS TIME.  
YEAS ALL. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

2. Disc Golf-The first proposed site was at Rosevear Park and connected to property 
owned by Oak Hill Cemetery.  A workable agreement/solution could not be obtained 
between the Oak Hill Cemetery Board and the City of Owosso. The second proposed 
site is Hopkins Lake. City Manager Don Crawford and Ms. Montenegro talked with John 
Beebe and Eric Sanderson about moving to Hopkins Lake.  Both gentlemen liked the 
idea of the move to the lake and will start placing nine of the 18 baskets for the first 
phase of the project. 
 
A question was raised of whether we could move the platforms already in place in 



draft 

 
Owosso Planning Commission – June 22, 2015  

3 
 

Rosevear Park to reuse at Hopkins Lake.  
 
Discussion was held on whether the city could organize a cleanup to clear brush and 
have other work done by volunteers to help the project along. John and Eric are very 
dedicated to the project and have worked last 4 years to get it organized. Commissioner 
Woodworth thinks we should go ahead with phase 1 and move on next year to phase 2.  

 
 
DISCUSSION:  None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
MOTION MADE TO ADJOURN AT 6:45 BY COMMISSIONER WOODWORTH, 
SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER NELSON.  
YEAS ALL, MOTION CARRIED  
 
Next meeting July 27, 2015 

 
 
 
 
 



Draft 

Minutes 
Regular Meeting of the Owosso Planning Commission 

Monday, June 22, 2015 at 7:00 p.m.   
Council Chambers – Owosso City Hall 

Owosso, MI  48867 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER:  Chairman Wascher called the meeting to order at 7:01 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Recited by all present 
 
ROLL CALL:    Roll Call was taken by Recording Secretary Denice Grace 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Bill Wascher, Commissioner Janae Fear, Vice-Chair 

Frank Livingston, Commissioner Mike O’Leary, Commissioner 
Brent Smith 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Commissioners Tom Taylor and Craig Weaver 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: Todd Stuive, P.E. Engineering Department Assistant Director, 

Exxel Engineering, Inc.; Peter Oleszczuk, Midwest V, LLC; Sue 
Montenegro, Assistant City Manage 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  
MOTION BY VICE-CHAIR LIVINGSTON, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER O’LEARY TO APPROVE 
THE AGENDA FOR JUNE 22, 2015 
YEAS ALL, MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER O’LEARY, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH TO APPROVE 
THE MINUTES FOR MAY 26, 2015 
YEAS ALL, MOTION CARRIED 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 

1. Staff Memorandum 
2. PC minutes from May 26,2015 
3. Site Plan Review packet for 210 S. Shiawassee 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 
Site Plan Review 
 

1. 210 S. Shiawassee-Dollar General store new site.  
 
Todd Stuive, Project Engineer, informed the Commission that they had gone through the rezoning 
process and were now zoned B1. 
 

 
Planning Commission Meeting minutes – June 22, 2015 

1 
 



Draft 

The site encompasses Clinton St. on the North, Genesee St. on the South, South Shiawassee on 
the East, and Valley Lumber and an alley on the West and will be a 9,300 square foot, single 
tenant, stand-alone building. Any loading would be done on the southwest corner of the property 
off of Genesee St. and that is also where the dumpsters will be located. 
 
Parking will be on the North of the building and in the rear of the building. Dollar General can 
comfortably fit 30 parking spots but the city ordinance requires 36 parking spots. They have a 
variance request ready to submit at the July Zoning Board of Appeals meeting should the site 
plan meet Planning Commission approval. 
 
The current homes on the site are to come down. All current homes will be disconnected from 
water service, gas service, and electric before the demolition process begins. Sidewalks will be 
removed and replaced. Drainage will be underground into the sewer on Clinton St. 
 
Signage – A 12 foot high pylon will be on the corners and a building sign at the East side at the 
front entrance. Commissioner O’Leary asked if they had MDOT approval which they don’t at this 
time but feel things are progressing well. It is unclear at this time if MDOT is waiting for city 
approval. Mr. Stuive thinks MDOT is just running behind.  
 
Commissioner O’Leary asked about outdoor lighting. All lighting is to be off the building but 
instead in the parking lot and are shielded.  Most of the lights will automatically shut off an hour 
after closing. Store hours will be either 9:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., 8:00 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., or 9:00 a.m. 
– 10:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioner O’Leary says the Henry family owns the alleyway behind the proposed building 
site and asked if Dollar General would be interested in possibly buying the alley. Peter Oleszczuk 
says yes it would be taken into consideration.  (Alleys are to be split between parties on each 
side). 
 
 Ground is higher on one side but shouldn’t be a problem.  
 
Commissioner Fear asked if the materials to be used would be similar to those used at other local 
Dollar General stores. Peter Oleszczuk says it many not necessarily be the same but it will be 
similar to concrete block.  
 
MOTION BY VICE-CHAIR LIVINGSTON TO APPROVE THE SITE PLAN FOR 210 S. 
SHIAWASSSEE FOR THE PROPOSED NEW DOLLAR GENERAL STORE DEPENDANT ON 
MDOT APPROVAL AND APPROVAL OF THE ZONING VARIANCE, SUPPORTED BY 
COMMISSIONER SMITH. 
YEAS ALL, MOTION CARRIED 
 

BUSINESS ITEM: 
 
 None 
 
ITEMS TO DISCUSS: 

 

 
Planning Commission Meeting minutes – June 22, 2015 

2 
 



Draft 

1. Identification of Railroads/yards for appropriate zoning purposes. 
 
Ms. Montenegro wants the planning commission to determine if all rail yards should be zoned the 
same. Commissioner O’Leary questioned whether the city had any jurisdiction over the railways. 
Discussion was held on whether a rail district should be created.  Chairman Wascher said there 
are restrictions if they are going to build on rail yards and the city would have jurisdiction over site 
plan review, setbacks and the like.   
 
A question was raised on whether “rail yard” is the correct term or should they be called 
something else.  A rail yard definition could not be found so the term must be defined by planning 
commission to interpret rail yard. 

 
Commission members wondered why the Steam Railroad Institute is zoned B4 and why their rail 
is zoned as I1. Ms. Montenegro will look into history of building and its zoning history as well as 
any previous uses for the building and report back to the commission at the July meeting.  

 
COMMISSIONER / PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN MADE BY VICE-CHAIR LIVINGSTON, SUPPORTED BY COMMISSIONER 
SMITH AT 7:47 
YAYS ALL, MOTION CARRIED  
 
NEXT MEETING JULY 27, 2015 
 
 
 

 
Planning Commission Meeting minutes – June 22, 2015 

3 
 



Owosso Historical Society 
Special Meeting 

June 22, 2015, 6:30 PM.  
Gould House 

For the purpose of discussing Gould House repairs, Nonprofit Network proposal 
and OHC 2015 Home Tour  

 
Present:  Tracey Peltier; Robert Brockway; Jennifer Mahoney, Vice Chair; Denis 

Mahoney; Nick Pidek, Elaine Greenway, Chair; Adrian Montague (arrived 

20 minutes late); Dean Ebert (arrived one hour late); Robert Doran, 

Director 

Absent:    None 

Guests:     Gordon Pennington, Josh Adams, Loraine Austin, Chris Eveleth  

Discussion:  

Invoices were presented to be paid for both Ludington Electric for $1, 269.20 for the new 

lighting at the Castle, as well as an invoice for Studio 52 Frame Shop for $1,577.00 for the 

framing of the blueprints for the Curwood Castle Historical Exhibition, on previously 

approved initiatives. Exact monetary values were needed for payment. Tracey Peltier made a 

motion to accept. Robert Brockway supported the motion. Motion passed unanimously on 

each individual amount.  

Repair and Restoration of Gould House was discussed.  

Apparently we will not receive any funds from the insurance company holding the city’s policy 

to repair the ceiling or any of the subsequent damage caused by the collapse. No adjuster ever 

came to see the damage and as of yet no explanation has been given for claim being denied. 

The question was asked do we have an appeal process and could we proceed with one. 

Although a copy of our insurance policy held by the city has been asked for, we have yet to 

receive it. Elaine stated she believed the repair of the damages could possibly fall under the 

maintenance fund held by the City of Owosso. Robert Doran expressed his opinion that it would 

not and Josh Adams agreed with Robert. Chris Eveleth offered to bring the entire matter up at 

the next City Council Meeting and ask if there are any funds that could be used for the repairs. 

Budgets and budgeting process was discussed in conjunction with using said finds. Chris Eveleth 

contributed his understanding of how the overall budget process works. Chris Eveleth offered 

to go to City Council and ask the above questions in regard to the insurance policy. Dennis gave 

his impressions of how the insurance policy may work. Nick added his concern that we as a 

commission need to have a very clear understanding of what our policy is and how it is 

structured, not only for Gould House, but for all the other historical properties under the care 



of the OHC. He proposed again that we request for a copy of the insurance policy. Tracey, as 

well as the entire Commission brought up the same thoughts and concerns.  

The Gould House repair expenses and estimates were distributed. The ceiling repair and 

painting – as well as refinishing the floor, cleaning and repairing the furniture, adding the 

electric art lighting, overall clean‐up/dust/returns/etc. – was discussed and it was decided that 

all work would be put on hold until a complete engineering report could be completed giving 

the Commission a comprehensive overview, allowing us to be pro‐active instead of re‐active. 

Director Robert Doran reminded the Commission the one of earliest proposals was to engage in 

the process in order to achieve a sustainable, short‐ and long‐term plan. Tracey Peltier, Nick 

Pidek and Elaine Greenway all expressed that this was a very important step. Lorraine Austin 

added that perhaps reaching out to the community and asking for input on how they felt about 

the house and if they would lend support towards maintenance, repairs, renovation and 

restoration. Gordon Pennington discussed capacity building and sustainability in regard to 

creating a sustainable plan for all the historical structures. Director Robert Doran concurred, 

adding that many all of the projects which he is currently driving have been leading up to 

sustainability and a “master plan” for the OHC.  Robert then briefly mentioned these projects 

including the recent OHC rebranding process, the new web site,  the on line collaborative 

curriculum, enrolling the OHC in the Cook Foundation Nonprofit Capacity Building initiative, 

bringing representatives from the Henry Ford to see our historical community assets and give 

advice on how to become more effective at both engaging the public and creating more vibrant 

and sustainable exhibits, inviting most of the Shiawassee County nonprofit historical entities to 

form a loose confederation which is leading toward leveraging marketing assets, joint 

exhibitions and events; eventually leading to an overall “county wide” rebranding process, and 

finally creating and managing a series of revolving historical exhibitions to showcase the assets 

of the OHC and the City of Owosso. Chris Eveleth again discussed going to City Council and 

asking if the ceiling or a portion of the ceiling expense could be covered under the Building and 

Maintenance fund that the City of Owosso maintains. 

Josh Adams recommended partially opening the Owosso Room of Gould House during the 

Home Tour in order to further engage the public in the fundraising, renovation and restoration 

process. 

A motion was brought by Tracey Peltier to move forward with the engineering report, putting 

a hold on all structural work until such engineering report dictates the scope of the 

renovation and restoration. Nick Pidek supported the motion. Motion passed unanimously.  

Robert Doran presented the consulting services proposal from the Nonprofit Network, which is 

intended as Phase I in the discussion of the OHC moving towards a 501(c)3. Robert stated that 

his recent experience with the Cook Foundation’s Nonprofit Capacity Building initiative has 

been extremely instructive and informative as we move forward in any professional capacity.  

Lorraine was asked to give her feedback and experiences from working directly with them in 

the past with Friends of the Shiawassee River. She also found it to be an excellent, thoroughly 



professional and informative process.  Robert Doran expressed confidence that the current 

Commission has both the emotional and professional equity, the drive and the correct mind set 

to engage in this type of process. Robert Doran has started writing a Technical Assistance Grant 

through The Cook Family Foundation for the funds to move forward with the proposal. Nick 

Pidek expressed concern about using the Nonprofit Network asking questions about best 

practices, methods and current models, and whether they would be the best fit of our 

organization. Adrian Montague shared the possibility of using “The Best Project,” but was 

unsure of their expertise. Adrian also expressed that there were several other avenues and 

possible sources for this kind of process. Nick and Adrian will do research to determine if the 

Nonprofit Network is our best choice, and offered to bring other agencies that will provide a 

similar process and deliverables. They will contact the Commission via email with any 

information before the July 13 meeting so we can consider other possibilities and make an 

informed vote. 

The OHC 2015 Home Tour was discussed. Elaine and Robert went over all the homes already on 

the tour and gave some brief information. The home tour budget is $5,000. (Please see 

attachment for detailed information of duties and responsibilities of Commission members for 

the 2015 Home Tour.)  

Saturday at 2:00 some of the commission offered to work with Elaine on the flower beds at The 

Gould House.  

Tracey motioned to adjourn the meeting. Nick supported. Meeting adjourned at 8:11 PM. 

 

   



2015 HOME TOUR 
Committees 

 

Elaine – Home Tour Chairperson: Oversees all aspects of the tour, working within the budget 

determined ($5,000) to present a successful home tour. Chairperson will coordinate all 

functions with OHC Director Robert Doran as well as the chairs of each committee. 

Elaine, Jennifer and Denice – Host/Hostess coordinator – recruit hostesses. Train hosts and 

hostesses of the history and notable items unique to each house.  In some past home tours a 

head hostess was appointed at each home to assist in training the hosts and hostesses for that 

home.   

Elaine, Jennifer and Denice – Volunteers. Volunteers will be needed for each committee. When 

calling we will put them in groups where they will be most useful, keeping in mind that for the 

Home Tour we will need at least 12 hosts and hostesses for each home.  We will have our first 

host and hostess orientation meeting the third week in July (exact date to be determined.)  

After which the chairs are free to have their own meetings. They will simultaneously report to 

the Tour Chair and the Director. 

Robert – Historian. Research the history of the homes on tour for the tour booklet and work 

with the Host/Hostess coordinator sharing any interesting items that could be mentioned by 

host/hostesses. 

Michael Paine & Robert – Photography. Responsible for taking pictures needed for the home 

tour booklet and candid shots throughout the day of the tour. 

Robert, Nick, Gordon, Jerrin – PR and Marketing. Market, promote and sell the tour both 

locally, regionally and state wide. 

Independent Newspaper, Robert & Nick – Ticket booklet and ads. Nick and Robert will be 

working with the designer at the Independent to assure brand  equity.  They will work with the 

Independent to complete the ticket tour booklet that will showcase the properties and events 

of the tour. 

Robert & Nick – online sales through the web site.  

Robert Brockway, Adrian, Dean, Erin P. ‐ Day of Ticket sales Responsible for processing tickets 

day of home tour sales. Tickets will be sold at Gould House and Woodard Pay Master Building. 

Responsible for making sure that tour booklets are available for sale at least one month prior to 

Home Tour at The Castle and The Shiawassee Arts Council.  

Elaine – Sponsorships – Recruit sponsors to underwrite events. 



Elaine, Jerrin – Flowers and props. Fresh flower arrangements will be donated by local flower 

shops. This volunteer will work with the homeowners and floral shops.  They will coordinate 

delivery of flowers, house numbers, booties, ribbons, and other props as needed to each 

homeowner and head host/hostess. 

Jennifer, Tracey, Elaine, Carolyn – Gould House Tea Party. Arrange, create and coordinate the 

tea party at the Amos Gould House on the day of the tour. This will be coordinated in tandem 

with the Director’s Historical Exhibition.  Tea Party runs from 1‐3. 

Robert & Nick – Website development coordinators.   

Robert & Nick – signage. 

Robert, Adrian – Facebook page. Coordinate to update all three FB pages on a regular basis 

leading up to the Home Tour 

There are many areas of work.  Some of us will be doing two and three jobs and working with 

others on various committees.  

Tracey – Event Chair. Will arrange for entertainment at various sites throughout tour day 

relevant to that site. 

Dennis, Dean ‐ Antique Car Show. Cars will be lined up in front of Gould House, on Gould House 

lawn and Fayette in Square Park lawn.  

Robert and Elaine – In July (date to be determined) we will meet with each homeowner to 

decide what will be shown in each home, how many docents are needed, and where they will 

be placed.  We always encourage the homeowners to have family and friends at the home as 

docents.  This makes it more personal and interesting to our visitors. 

There are many areas to of work. Many of us will be doing two or three jobs and working with 

other committees as needed.   

This is a lot of work and a lot of fun.  We’re looking for a banner year in profits.  There are a lot 

of projects where that money can go. 


	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF JUNE 15, 2015:
	150615CouncilMinutes

	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CITY MANAGER REPORT
	Project Status Report

	CONSENT AGENDA
	1 Boards and Commissions Appointments
	2 AdaStreetBlockPartyPermission
	3 ProfessionalServicesAgreement-OliverStreetSurvey
	4 BidAward-LegalNoticesPrintingServices
	5 BidAward-2015SidewalkReplacementProgram
	6 Warrant505

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	1 CouncilCandidateInterviews&AppointmentToFillVacancy

	COMMUNICATIONS
	1 SGray-LetterOfResignation
	2 BuildingReport-May2015
	3 CodeEnforcementReport-May2015
	4 HistoricDistrictCommissionMinutes-150520
	5 HistoricDistrictCommissionMinutes-150617
	DDAMinutes-150603
	Parks&RecreationCommissionMinutes-150622
	PlanningCommissionMinutes-150622
	HistoricalCommissionMinutes-150622

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT



